IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD

~ Annual Report and Financial Statements

31 December 2021

Company Registration Number: C48767



IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Pages
Directors’ report 1-86
Independent auditor's report 7-18
Statement of financial position 19
[ncome statement 20
Statement of comprehensive income 21
Statement of changes in equity 22
Statement of cash flows 23

Notes to the financial statements 24 - 87



L 13

-

|IG BANK (MALTA) LTD
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of 1IG Bank (Malta) Ltd
{the “Bank™) for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Principal activities

The principal activity of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd is the operation of a credit institution under the Banking Act,
Cap 371 of the Laws of Malta, in accordance with the credit institution licence granted by the Malta Financial
Services Authority (“MFSA”). As at 31 December 2021 the Bank had one branch located in Malta.

The Bank’s primary activity consists of international frade finance. It is a lender and facilitator to a client
base of traders engaged in the import and export of essential commodities, consumer consumables, energy
products and other goods traded all over the world, including business opportunities involving emerging
markets. Funding for this core business activity is sourced primarily from the domestic market attracting
savers with competitive interest rates for term deposits denominated in EUR, GBP and USD ranging from
one to five years maturity.

Review of the business

Performance: The Bank has continued to focus on its speciality business model as a niche lender to traders
in the international supply chain of commaodities with a global reach.

During 2021, the Bank started to exit the perfect storm it weathered throughout 2020, namely the impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic, the issues with the Bank’s ultimate parent, IIG Trade Opportunities Fund N.V., and
the loss of its US Dollar correspondent. A significant development was the re-establishment of the
correspondent banking relationship with a prime US Dollar clearing bank in July 2021, which as expected
had a very positive impact on the Bank’s operational capability. This combined with relaxation from the
precautions of Covid-19 pandemic, as the effects started wearing off especially during the second half of
the year with evidence that major economies picking up momentum. During the pandemic, the Bank had
taken a conservative approach towards granting new facilities, thus avoiding the danger of certain failures
which hit the market during the past 2 years. In 2021, the Bank also managed to secure a binding offer for
the purchase of its entire shareholding. The respective share purchase agreement has been executed and
the Board is confident that the application to the MFSA for the change of ownership will be presented soon
with a view to closing by late 2022,

The Bank’s loan portfolio continued to perform in a satisfactory manner during 2021, and the Bank did not
suffer any impairment losses related to COVID-19 during the period. The Bank also continued to cure
problematic exposures (stage 2 and stage 3) reducing the overall level from US$ 6.7 million in 2020 to US$
3.5million in 2021.

By the end of the year, the Bank managed to reduce the term deposit base to a level that is more in tune
with its lending book, thus becoming more in control of excess cash balances while focusing on curtailing
interest payable, and as a result, the overall cost of funding has been in gradual decline of the latter months
of 2021 and 2022. By the end 2021, the sources of deposits evolved to approximately 49% sourced from
Fixed Term Deposits, 14% from the online deposit platform, 26% from call accounts and the remaining 11%
from notice and cash collateral accounts. The growth in the level of call deposits in 2021 is an indicator of
the increased confidence in the Bank, as well as driver to reduce interest expense.

The Bank ended the year with a balance sheet US$193 million, which was practically the same as at 31
December 2020. Apart from cash with banks, other assets remained relatively stable at an average total of
about US$195 million. During 2021, the Capital Adequacy Ratio ("CAR”) was strengthened, from 14.8% as
at end of 2020 to 15.7% as at December 2021. In May 2021, the MFSA established the Bank’s Total SREP
Capital Ratic (“TSCR") of 14.5%, and since then the Bank's CAR has remained at a healthy level above
that floor. The Bank continues to maintain a strong short-term liquidity position as indicated at year end by
the Liquidity coverage ratio of 615% (regulatory minimum of 80%), and a stable funding source as indicated
by Net Stable Funding Ratio which stands at 243% (regulatory minimum of 100%).
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Directors’ report - continued

The Bank's net interest and fee income in 2021 generated US$5,347K, compared to the US$3,997K in
2020. This was a significant improvement on the Bank's performance against prior year, driven primarily
by an improvement in the net interest income where the Bank generated an additional US$510K over 2020,
and an increase of US$840K in net fee income over 2020. Overall, the Bank’s operating income increased
by US$1,870K over that generated in 2020.

Overall, the results indicate a strong level of resilience to difficult economic and trading conditions, and
whilst the net trading results are not exceptional, considering the current environment, these could be
considered positive.

Income Statement: During the financial year under review, the Bank registered a net profit after tax of
US$405,315 (2020: loss of US$718,519). The key components of the income statement are: net interest
income of US$4,127,602 (2020: US$3,618,073), net fee and commission income of US$1,219,223 (2020:
US$379,240), gain on disposal of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income of US$7,971 (2020: US$101,398) and net trading gains of US$171,788 (2020: losses of
US$442,184) resulting in an operating income of US$5,526,584 (2020: US$3,656,527). The administrative
expenses for the year were US$4,594,039 (2020: US$4,176,775) and net impairment charge of
US$293,652 {2020: US$597,162) resulted in profit before tax of US$638,883 {2020: loss before tax of
US$1,117,410).

Statement of financial position: The year-end statement of financial position of US$192,692,235 (2020:
US$192,281,826), was higher than the average during the year. As at balance sheet date, the level of
unapplied cash balances had decreased marginally to US$22,413,659 (2020; US$25,280,651), whilst the
average term loans and advances during the year to banks increased to US8%$22,297,451 (2020
US$18,071,589). The increase in lending through banks is based on underlying trade payables committed
by banks under letters of credit. This is aligned with the strategy being followed by the Bank to diversify the
loan portfolic with a growing component of forfaiting opportunities. This is deemed to be a lower risk activity
than lending to customers at the start of a transaction. In forfaiting or discounting, the Bank is refinancing
trade through contingent liabilities of other international banks or in discounting banks' accepted
receivables. This reflects a contained risk approach as the bank progresses through a change in ownership
(more on this in outlook statement below). Exposures to loans and advances to customers decreased
marginally to US$60,996,460 (2020: US$63,946,717). As stated above, the Bank is increasingly focusing
on reducing its cost of funding by lowering interest rates on its term deposits in the domestic market, by
seeking to increase non-interest bearing call deposits and by tapping into the online deposit platform from
the German market where deposits are sourced in a flexible manner and at lower rates than the very
competitive domestic market. Amounts owed to customers decreased marginally to US$148,387,154
(2020: US$153,839,193).
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Directors’ report - continued

Outlook for 2022: We started the year with a positive outlook riding on the surge of economic activities in
the world most developed countries. The spike of the Omicron variant did nothing much to dampen the
drive, to the extent that inflation targets forecast for Q4 2021 became obsolete very early in the year, where
in most cases the rate at which prices were going up more than doubled, initially driven by the surging price
of oil and energy products. Unfortunately, the positive climate that reigned in the markets after 2 years to
Covid concerns changed quite suddenly as an impending threat by Russia on the border with Ukraine
rapidly escalated into all-out war when the invasionary force of Russian military descended on Ukraine,
simultaneously attacking most major cities especially taking control of the main ports of the country, thus
effectively blocking most ports of the North Black Sea. The attack shocked the world and major sanctions
have and continue to be imposed against anything Russian. So far, the economic sanctions imposed by
most countries, but spearheaded most effectively by the USA and the EU, have failed to change the course
of the war, and now, well into the third month of this tragic struggle that is affecting the lives of millions of
Ukrainian people, there is rising concern about a potential spill over of the war across neighbouring borders
into EU countries.

The Bank’s core business is in assisting traders dealing in commodities, sourcing/buying physical goods
and selling into countries which depending to a large extent on such imported products, especially soits
and other consumable products to feed their populations. The Black Sea region, especially the Ukraine, is
a major source of such products, especially for this immediate regicnal area of the world, including Europe,
Middle East and North Africa. Egypt, in particular, is suffering hugely the effects of lack of grain imports to
feed its population. Hence, while inflation and the rising prices of commodities was not a major concern for
the Bank, since its customers are short term buyers and sellers where most contracts are based on back-
to-back buy/sell fixed prices, the effects of the war on our customers’ ability to source and move goods is
of concern. On the positive side, our borrowing customer base has proved resilient in the past and we are
already seeing a redirection of supply chains developing, but it would certainly be a Godsend to see a quick
resolution of the war and the reopening of certain markets. The Bank is committed to continue assisting its
loyal borrowing customer base focusing its attention to business on a transactional basis allowing for
measured and calculated risk.

Over the past 2 years, we disclosed the events that led to the dissolution of the Fund, [IG TOF NV, which
to date, is still our ultimate parent. We are happy to report here that the threats emanating from the events
of 2019 are now way in the past, even though we still seek recovery of certain funds, albeit mostly provided
for. We are now looking forward to a brighter future under new ownership as reported further below.

Change of ownership

Last year, we reported that the Bank was in the process of a change of ownership. Mid-year in 2021, that
process culminated in the submission of a binding offer by a prospective buyer committing to acquire the
100% shareholding of the Bank. Following a period of extensive due diligence the parties have now signed
the Share Purchase Agreement and the preparation of the requisite application for regulatory approval by
the MFSA and the ECB is now progressing in earnest. The Board expects the process to be concluded late
in the 4! quarter of this current year, 2022. In the meantime, the assurances received from the prospective
buyer supports the Bank to remain faithful to its business strategy and to service its loyal client base,
primarily to maintain the quaiity of service offered to its depositing customers and to continue supporting its
borrowing base clients, providing frade facilitation through funding of international trade and commodity
finance products.
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Directors’ report — continued
Key performance indicators

The Board of Directors tracks the Bank's progress in implementing its strategy with a range of financial
measures or key performance indicators (‘KPIs’). Progress is assessed by comparison with the Bank's
budgets and historical performance. The financial KPIs tracked by the Board of the Bank are presented in
the following table.

2021 2020
Profit/{loss) before tax US$638,893  (US$1,117,410)
Cost to income ratio 95% 125%
Return on equity 1.58% {2.89%)
Capital Adeguacy Ratio 16.60% 14.48%

The Board of Directors does not moniter any specific non-financial KPls.
Risk management

IIG Bank faces a range of business, financial and operational risks, The Bank adopts a robust corporate
governance framework with a bank-wide risk management approach, to understand what its risks are, how
much risk is acceptable, and to be able to manage it to create value for shareholders while meeting
regulatory requirements ensuring integrity, and ethical and transparent behaviour.

At a strategic level, the Bank's financial risk management objectives are:

i.  Toensure appropriate identification of the Bank’s significant risks;

ii. Toensure that the Bank's plans are consistent with its Risk Appetite;

ii. To optimise risk/return decisions by taking them as closely as possible to the business, while
establishing strong and independent review and challenge structures; and

iv. To help the Bank’s Management improve the control and co-ordination of risk taking across the
business.

Also, as part of embedding a strong risk culture, the Bank recognises the need to have the required
resources in place for effective risk management. In this respect, during 2019, the Bank has increased the
head count within its dedicated risk management function and enhanced IT infrastructure.

A detailed review of the Bank’s use of financial instruments, its exposure to liquidity risk, credit risk and
market risk, and the respective financial risk management objectives and policies, is included in Note 2 to
the financial statements.
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Directors’ report - continued
Results and dividends

The income statement is set out on page 20. As in 2020, during 2021, the directors have not proposed any
dividends relative to the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors
The directors of the Bank who heid office during the year were:

Joseph Grioli - Chairman
Raymond Busuttil
James Douglas Nelson
Karl Vella

In accordance with the Bank’s articles of association, the directors remain in office until they resign or are
otherwise removed from office.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are required by the Maltese Banking Act (Cap. 371) and the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.
386) to prepare financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank as at
the end of each reporting period and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

* ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;

« selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

¢ making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances: and

* ensuring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Bank will continue in business as a going concern.

The financial statements of IG Bank (Malta) Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2021 are included in the
Annual Report 2021, which is published in hard-copy printed form and may be made available on the Bank's
website. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report on the
website in view of their responsibility for the controls over, and the security of, the website. Access to
information published on the Bank’'s website is available in other countries and jurisdictions, where
legislation governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
requirements or practice in Malta.

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Maltese Banking Act (Cap. 371) and
the Maitese Companies Act (Cap. 388). They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




IG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements 31 December 2021

Directors’ report - continued

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the board

Joseph Grioli James D uglas Nelson
Director Dtrecter\\

Registered Office: Company Secretary:

Level 20 Karl Vella

Portomaso Business Tower

St. Julians STJ4011 Telephone number: 22484500
Malta

27 April 2022
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion:

¢ The financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd
(the Bank) as at 31 December 2021, and of the Bank’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as
adopted by the EU; and

e The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese
Banking Act (Cap. 371) and the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee.

What we have audited

IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd’s financial statements, set out on pages 19 to 87, comprise:
e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

¢ the income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements of the
Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the
Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these Codes.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services that we have provided to
the Bank are in accordance with the applicable law and regulations in Malta and that we have not
provided non-audit services that are prohibited under Article 18A of the Accountancy Profession Act
(Cap. 281).

The non-audit services that we have provided to the Bank, in the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021, are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

Our audit approach

Overview

e Overall materiality: US$1,924,000 which represents approximately 1%
of total assets.

Materiality

Audit
scope

e Credit loss allowances in respect of loans and advances to

Key audit
customers

matters

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made
subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptlons and conmderlng future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also
addiessed (e risk of management override oI nternal controls, mcluding among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Bank, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Bank operates.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below.

These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall materiality US$1,924,000

How we determined it Approximately 1% of total assets

Rationale Jor the We chose total assets as the benchmark because, in our view, the
materiality  benchmark assets held are considered to be the key driver of the business and
applied the determinant of the Bank’s value.

We selected 1% based on our professional judgement, noting that
it is also within the range of commonly accepted asset-related
thresholds.

We have applied a specific lower materiality of US$82,000 solely for financial statement line items in
the income statement, since we deemed that misstatements of a lower amount than overall materiality
in those line items might reasonably influence stakeholders.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during
our audit above US$96,000 as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued

To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Credit loss allowances in respect of loans and
advances to customers

Credit loss allowances in respect of loans and
advances to customers represent management’s
best estimate of the expected credit losses
(‘ECLs") incurred within the Bank’s loan
portfolio at the balance sheet date. A
considerable level of judgement is required to
estimate ECLs on loans measured at amortised
cost in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 9.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in the
preceding year has increased the level of
uncertainty around the calculation of ECLs, giving
rise to heightened subjectivity in the
determination of  assumptions, hence
necessitating a higher level of expert judgement.

All loans and advances to customers are
considered individually significant. As a result,
credit loss allowances relating to all loans and
advances within the portfolio are determined at
an instrument level.

For non-defaulted (Stages 1 and 2) exposures,
the Bank uses an ECL model that relies
specifically on the following key inputs:
probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The
maximum period considered when measuring
ECL is the maximum period over which the
Bank is exposed to credit risk. The PDs and
LGDs used within the model are estimated
using development data based on the Bank’s
own experience as available at the reporting
date. PDs are based on the Bank’s historical
default data while LGDs are based on the
Bank’s recovery history.

During our audit of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, we continued to focus on the
key drivers of the estimation of ECL, also in view of the
impacts that the COVID-19 pandemic is still having on
different economies.

Discussions with management focused mainly on
modelling assumptions and parameters in the context of
the ongoing economic uncertainties, as well as on the key
assumptions in respect of the discounted cashflow
models used to determine expected credit losses on
defaulted/Stage 3 exposures.

In respect of the ECL calculation for non-defaulted
exposures we performed the following procedures:

e Since modelling assumptions and parameters
are based on historic data, we discussed with
management and assessed the potential impact
of the unprecedented circumstances we are
currently experiencing on the adequacy of key
model parameters.

e  We tested the completeness and accuracy of the
critical data, extracted from the underlying
systems, that is utilised within the models for
the purposes of the year-end ECL calculation.
This includes completeness of data used in the
computation of the PD, LGD and Exposure at
Default (‘EADs’).

¢ Tested a sample of loans to independently
review the borrower’s financial performance
and ability to meet loan repayments and assess
the appropriateness of the internal credit
ratings, and hence the stage classification,
assigned by management.

10
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Independent auditor’s report - continued

To the Shareholders of 1IG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Key audit matter

For defaulted (Stage 3) exposures,
discounted cash flow models are utilised
in order to estimate ECLs. Judgement is
required to determine when a default has
occurred, and then to estimate the
expected future cash flows related to that
loan, which are highly dependent on
assumptions in respect of forecasted
operating cash flows.

Judgement is also required to determine
when an increase in credit risk or default
has occurred and as a result, to allocate
the appropriate stage classification.
Staging is determined based on a
combination of criteria including days
past due, borrowers’ performance and
how strategic and economic
developments affect borrowers’ future
payment capabilities. In this respect, the
impact of the pandemic has increased the
level of uncertainty around judgements
made in determining when a Significant
Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) or an
Unlikeliness to Pay (UTP) event has
occurred.

Under IFRS 9, the Bank is required to
incorporate multiple forward-looking
economic scenarios, reflecting
management's view of potential future
economic developments, into ECL
estimates.

The complexity attributable to this factor
requires management to develop multiple
macro-economic scenarios involving the
use of significant judgements.

In this context, the outbreak of COVID-19
has  significantly  increased  the
uncertainty around judgements made in
determining forward looking macro-
economic scenarios used in ECL models
as well as the severity and probability
attributable to such scenarios.

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Tested the appropriateness of model design and
formulas applied to determine the ECL, as well as
the calculations performed in the model.

Tested the reasonableness of macro-economic
variables used to determine PDs under different
forward-looking scenarios.

Based on the evidence obtained, we found the model
assumptions and data used within the model to
determine expected credit losses for non-defaulted
loans to be reasonable.

The appropriateness of management’s judgements was
also independently considered in respect of defaulted
exposures. In this respect, we performed the following
procedures:

Assessed critically the criteria used by management
for determining whether a default event had
occurred by testing a sample of performing loans to
challenge whether default events had actually
occurred.

Reviewed the credit files of defaulted loans to
understand the latest developments at the level of
the borrower and the basis of measuring the ECL
provisions and considered whether key judgements
were appropriate given the borrowers’
circumstances.

Determined different scenarios and their
respective probability weights independently,

and formed our view (based on detailed loan and
customer information in the credit file) on the
recoverability of the selected corporate loans.

Based on the evidence obtained, we found
management’s judgements to be reasonable.

11
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

We focused on credit loss allowances due
to the subjective nature of the calculations
and the subjective judgements involved in
both timing of recognition of impairment
and the estimation of the size of any such
impairment.

Accordingly, summarising the key areas
relevant to the Bank’s measurement of
ECLs would include:

o Allocation of loans to Stage 1, 2, or
3 using criteria in accordance with
IFRS 9;

e Modelling assumptions used to
build the models that calculate the
ECL;

¢ Completeness and accuracy of data
used to calculate the ECL;

e Inputs and assumptions used to
estimate the impact of multiple
macro- economic scenarios; and

e Measurements of individually
assessed credit losses including the
assessment of multiple scenarios.

Relevant references in the Annual Report
and Financial Statements:

Accounting policy: Note 1.3;

Credit risk management: Note 2.1 (a);

Note on Change in expected credit
losses and other credit impairment
charges: Note 25;

Note on Loans and advances to
customers: Note 8; and

Critical accounting estimates, and
judgements in applying accounting
policies: Note 3.




;o

pwc

Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
report, and the Additional Regulatory Disclosures including the Five Year Summary (but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon except as explicitly stated within the Report on other legal
and regulatory requirements.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Banking Act (Cap.
371) and the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

13



i

pwc

Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. In particular,
it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications that COVID-19 will have on the Bank’s
trade, customers and suppliers, and the disruption to its business and the overall economy.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

14



Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021 contains other areas required by legislation or regulation
on which we are required to report. The Directors are responsible for these other areas.

The table below sets out these areas presented within the Annual Report, our related responsibilities and
reporting, in addition to our responsibilities and reporting reflected in the Other information section of our
report. Except as outlined in the table, we have not provided an audit opinion or any form of assurance.

Area of the Annual Report
and Financial Statements
2021 and the related

Our responsibilities

Our reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

Directors’ report
(on pages 1to 6)

The Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386) requires the
directors to prepare a
Directors’ report, which
includes the contents required
by Article 177 of the Act and the
Sixth Schedule to the Act.

We are required to consider
whether the information given
in the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the
financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

We are also required to express
an opinion as to whether the
Directors’ report has been
prepared in accordance with
the applicable legal
requirements.

In addition, we are required to
state whether, in the light of the
knowledge and understanding
of the Bank and its
environment obtained in the
course of our audit, we have
identified any material
misstatements in the Directors’
report, and if so to give an
indication of the nature of any
such misstatements.

In our opinion:

the information given in
the Directors’ report for
the financial year for
which the financial
statements are prepared
is consistent with the
financial statements;
and

the Directors’ report has
been prepared in
accordance with the
Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386).

We have nothing to report to
you in respect of the other
responsibilities, as explicitly
stated within the Other
information section.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Our reporting

Area of the Annual Report Our responsibilities
and Financial Statements

2021 and the related

Directors’ responsibilities

Other matters prescribed
by the Maltese Banking Act
(Cap. 371)

In terms of the requirements of
the Maltese Banking Act (Cap.
371), we are also required to
report whether:

e we have obtained all the
information and explanations
which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of
our audit;

e proper books of account
have been kept by the bank, so
far as appears from our
examination of those books;

e the bank’s financial
statements are in agreement
with the books of account;

e in our opinion, and to the
best of our knowledge and
according to the explanations
given to us, the financial
statements give the
information required by any
law which may from time to
time be in force in the manner
so required.

In our opinion:

e we have obtained all the
information and
explanations which to
the best of our
knowledge and belief
were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

e proper books of account
have been kept by the
bank, so far as appears
from our examination of
those books;

e the bank’s financial
statements are in
agreement with the
books of account; and

¢ to the best of our
knowledge and according
to the explanations given
to us, the financial
statements give the
information required by
any law in force in the
manner so required.
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Independent CIUdI'tOTJS report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Area of the Annual Report Our responsibilities Our reporting
and Financial Statements

2021 and the related
Directors’ responsibilities

Other matters on which we are We have nothing to report
required to report by to you in respect of these
exception responsibilities.

We also have responsibilities under
the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.
386) to report to you if, in our
opinion adequate accounting
records have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches
not visited by us.

Other matter — use of this report

Our report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Bank’s shareholders as a
body in accordance with Article 179 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior written consent.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of IIG Bank (Malta) Ltd

Appointment

We were first appointed as auditors of the Bank for the period ended 31 December 2010 on 22 March 2010.
Our appointment has been renewed annually by shareholder resolution representing a total period of
uninterrupted engagement appointment of 12 years.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
78, Mill Street

Zone 5, Central Business District
Qormi

Malta

Lucienne Pace Ross
Partner

27 April 2022
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IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December

2021 2020
Notes uss$ us$

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Malta
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

13,539,932 12,018,099
70,880,826 54,327,792

813 988,202
37,863,330 50,860,329
60,996,460 63,946,717

-—
Sigom~Nouh

Property, plant and equipment 72,945 112,533
Intangible assets 1,978,718 2,157,479
Right-of-use assets 627,356 1,012,041
Deferred tax assets 1,628,464 1,760,867
Accrued income and other assets 13 5,103,391 5,097,767
Total assets 192,692,235 192,281,826
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 14 26,500,000 26,500,000
Fair value reserve 15 110,108 285,885
Other reserve 16 300,149 300,149
Accumulated losses (1,219,992) (1,625,307)
Total equity 25,690,265 25,460,727
Liabilities

Amounts owed to customers 17 148,387,154 153,839,193
Amounts owed to banks 18 17,000,000 11,000,000
Derivative financial instruments 6 95,599 140,339
Lease liabilities 11 691,707 1,083,840
Other liabilities 19 827,510 757,727
Total liabilities 167,001,970 166,821,099
Total equity and liabilities 192,692,235 192,281,826
MEMORANDUM ITEMS

Commitments and other contingencies 20 13,512,490 13,638,823

The official closing middle rate of exchange applicable between US dollar and euro publis&d by the
European Central Bank as at 31 December 2021 was 1.1326 (2020: 1.2271).

The notes on pages 24 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statemehts.

the hoar J April 2022 and

N

The financial statements on pages 19 to 87 were authorised for issue
were signed on its behalf by:

-
LT

— _Jeseph Grioli T ___ Jameg Douglas Nelson

Director Director




G BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Income statement

Notes

Interest income 21
Interest expense 22
Net interest income
Fee and commissicn income 23
Fee and commission expense 23
Net fee and commission income
Net trading gains/(losses) 24
Net gains on disposal of financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Operating income
Change in expected credit losses and other credit

impairment charges 25
Administrative expenses 26
Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax (expense)/income 27

Profit/(loss} for the year

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

Us$ Us$
6,057,787 5,404,272
(1,930,185) (1,786,199)
4,127,602 3,618,073
1,963,166 1,105,551
(743,943) (726,311)
1,219,223 379,240
171,788 (442,184)
7,971 101,398
5,526,584 3,656,527
(293,652) (597,162)
{4,594,039) (4,178,775)
638,893 (1,117,410)
(233,578) 398,891
405,315 (718,519)

The notes on pages 24 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Statement of comprehensive income

Profit/{loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Net changes in fair value arising during the year, before tax

Reclassification adjustments - net amounts reclassified to profit
or loss upon disposal, before tax

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive
Income

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income{(loss} for the year

Note

12

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
US$ us$
405,315 (718,519)
(268,981) 689,400
(7,971) (101,397)
101,175 (205,801)
(175,777) 382,202
229,538 (336,317)

The notes on pages 24 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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[IG BANK {MALTA) LTD

Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Statement of changes in equity

Notes

Balance at 31 December 2019

Comprehensive income
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Fair valuation of financial assets
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Net changes in fair value arising
during the year, net of tax
Reclassification adjustments —
net amounts reclassified to profit or
loss, net of tax

512

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2020

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Fair valuation of financial assets
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive incorme
Net changes in fair value arising
during the year, net of tax
Reclassification adjustments —
net amounts reclassified to profit or
loss, net of tax

5,12

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2021

Share Fair value Other Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity
uss$ us$ uUss us$ uss
26,500,000 {96,317) 300,149 {906,788) 25,797,044
- - - (718,519) (718,519)
- 448,110 - - 448,110
- (65,908) - - (65,908)
- 382,202 - (718,519) (336,317)
26,500,000 285,885 300,149  (1,625,307) 25,460,727
- - - 405,315 405,315
- (170,596) - - {170,596)
- (5,181} - - (5,181)
- (175,777) - 405,315 229,538
26,500,000 110,108 300,149 (1,219,992} 25,690,265

The notes on pages 24 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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G BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Statement of cash flows

Operating activities

Interest and commission income received
Interest and commission expense paid

Net income from foreign exchange transactions
Tax paid

Cash payments to employees and suppliers

Cash flows generated from operating activities before changes in

operafting assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Net {increase)/decrease in balances with Central Bank of Malta
Net {Increase)/decrease in financial assets measured at amortised

cost
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to banks
Net decrease in amounts attributable to
Depositor Compensation Scheme
Net {increase)/decrease in loans and advances to
customers
Net increase/(decrease) in amounts owed to customers
Net increase/(decrease) in amounts owed to banks

Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Purchase of financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets measured at amortised cost
Proceeds from disposal and redemptions of financial
assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from dispesal and redemptions of financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash (used)/generated from investing activities

Financing activities
Principal element of lease payment

Net cash used in financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

4]

13

17
18

11

28

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
uss US$
6,190,130 6,617,172
(2,595,820) (2,490,351)
1,129,065 2,822,532
(3,803,043) (3,459,886)
920,332 3,489,467
313,223 (248,800)
1,335,621 -
4,105,024 (9,317,573)
(25,724) 73,051
(634,051) (9,945,088)
4,593,204 23,214,013
6,000,000 11,000,000
16,607,629 18,267,070
(4,720,270) (22,834,682)
(18,601,087) (8,479,561)
(22,077,537) -
6,743,950 3,014,465
14,079,564 7,030,652
(16,128) (9,516)
(134,393) (66,578)
(24,725,901) (21,345,220)
(408,634) (328,456)
(408,634) (328,456)
(8,526,906) (3,406,608}
49,479,789 52,886,395
40,952,883 49,479,789

The notes on pages 24 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1IG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Notes to the financial statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. Unless otherwise stated, these policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requiremenis of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and with the requirements
of the Banking Act, (Cap. 371) and the Maltese Companies Act, (Cap. 386). These financial
statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the fair valuation of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, including
derivative financial instruments, and financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their judgment in the
process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies (see Note 3 - Critical accounting estimates, and
judgments in applying accounting policies).

Assessment of going concern assumplion

In 2019, the Bank's ultimate parent, IG Trade Opportunities Fund N.V. {the Fund), was put into
administration friggering a wind-down of the Fund's assets, including the sale of the Fund’s stake in
the Bank.

In 2020, the Bank formed a Steering Committee 1o seek expressions of interest (EOIs) fo acquire the
100% ownership of the Bank. The Steering Committee, guided by external legal counsel, established
a selection and due diligence process for prospective candidates for cwnership. The prospective
candidates for ownership, must meet the rigid criteria imposed on qualifying shareholders as dictated
by the regulatory authorities, being the Malta Financial Services Authority (MFSA) and the European
Central Bank (ECB).

During 2021, the process of the change in ownership culminated in the submission of a binding offer
by a prospective buyer committing to acquire the 100% shareholding of the Bank. Following a period
of extensive due diligence, the parties have now signed the Share Purchase Agreement and the
preparation of the requisite application for regulatory approval by the MFSA and the ECB is now
progressing in earnest. The Board expects the process to be concluded late in the 4th quarter of
2022, In the meantime, the assurances received from the prospective buyer supports ithe Bank to
remain faithful to its business strategy and to service its loyal client base, primarily to maintain the
quality of service offered to its depositing customers and to continue supporting its borrowing base
clients, providing trade facilitation through funding of international trade and commodity finance
producis.

Until completion of the change in control process, the Bank's management will continue to focus the
Bank's business sfrategy on servicing its depositing customers and providing trade facilitation
through the provision of funding and trade and commodity finance products to its borrowing
customers.

In view of these circumstances, the directors will ensure that no dividends are paid out and no
irrevocable commitment to pay out dividends will be undertaken until the change in control process
is duly authorised by the Bank’s competent authorities.
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G BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation — continued

In addition, the directors have also considered the impact of the armed conflict between Russia and
Ukraine. Upon the emergence of this confiict, the Bank performed an initial assessment of the effects
the current situation may have on its financial position and ongoing financial performance, and
following an in-depth analysis of its lending customers, the Bank is not expecting delays in
repayments from increased credit risk, other than in the case of 1 borrower, that has been directly
affected by the current situation, and that has requested an extension in its repayment terms.
Accordingly, subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Bank has accordingly granted
forbearance measures to support this borrower which triggered a staging classification to Stage 2.
The Bank recognised a fair value loss in respect of its investment portfolio attributable mainly to four
debt securities issued by Russian and Ukrainian corporates. As of the date of these financial
statements the directors have not identified a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern.

In the meantime, management is confident that the Bank's strategy is feasible and tenable. On the
basis of these considerations, it is the view of the Board of Directors that there is a reasonable
expectation that the Bank is able fo continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2021

In 2021, the Bank adopted the amendments to existing standards relating to ‘Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2', which amends IFRS 9, IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments,’ IFRS 7
‘Financial Instruments,” IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, that are mandatory for
the Bank's accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021. Described below, the adoption of these
revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU did not result in substantial changes to
the Bank's accounting policies impacting the Bank's financial performance and position.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16’ issued in August 2020 represents the second phase of the IASB’s project on the effects of
interest rate benchmark reform, addressing issues affecting financial statements when changes are
made to confractual cash flows and hedging relationships as a result of the reform.

Under these amendments, changes made to a financial instrument measured at other than fair value
through profit or loss that are economically equivalent and required by interest rate benchmark reform
do not result in the derecognition or a change in the carrying amount of the financial instrument, but
instead require the effective interest rate to be updated to reflect the change in the interest rate
benchmark. In addition, hedge accounting is not discontinued solely because of the replacement of
the interest rate benchmark if the hedge mests other hedge accounting criteria.

Interbank offered rates ('IBORs') were typically used to set interest rates on hundreds of trillions of
different types of financial transactions and were used extensively for valuation purposes, risk
measurement and performance benchmarking.

The 2016 EU Benchmark Regulation, which aims to ensure the accuracy, robustness and integrity
of interest rate benchmarks, has led various national working groups to actively discuss the
mechanisms for an orderly transition of five Libor currencies (US dollar, Euro, Pound sterling,
Japanese yen and the Swiss franc) and the Euro Overnight Index Average (‘Eonia’} fo their chosen
replacement near risk-free rate {RFR').

25



IG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 Decemnber 2021

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2021 — continued

Since 31 December 2021 representative Libor rates are no longer available in the case of all sterling,
euro, Swiss franc and Japanese yen rates, and the 1-week and 2-month US dollar rates. Meanwhile,
the benchmark in the case of the remaining US dollar settings {one, three, six and 12 month), will
cease on 30 June 2023. In addition, the Eonia benchmark ceased on 3 January 2022.

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank had US dollar Libor exposures in the form of floating rate loans
and advances to customers that were subject to the reform. As a resuli, during 2021 the Bank
embarked on an IBOR transition programme centred around the development of a new replacement
product and actively removed US dollar Libor referencing loans and advances from sale.

In this respect the Bank has actively engaged with its clients to cease the origination of Libor linked loans
and advances and developed and implemented systems to introduce the origination of loans and
advances on the basis of ‘managed interest rates’, through which the variable interest rate charged by the
Bank is prescribed as a margin over a rate that is set from time to time by the Bank itself.

As at 31 December 2021, from total loans and advances to customers with a gross carrying amount
of US$62,646,787, US$21,204,360, were originated using the Bank's managed interest rates. The
remaining loans and advances to customers amounting to US%$41,352,427, reference the US Libor
rates that will cease on 30 June 2023. These loans are expected to mature and be repaid at the
latest by July 2022 and are accordingly expected to be replaced by loans originated using the Bank's
managed interest rates.

Accordingly, as at 31 December 2021, the Bank had no financial instruments with a contractual
maturity date after 31 December 2021 and for which the benchmark had ceased.

Standards, interpretations and amendmenis fo published standards that are not yef effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
by the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements, that are mandatory for the Bank's
accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2022. The Bank have not early adopted these revisions
to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Bank's Directors are of the opinion that
there are no requirements that will have possible significant impact on the Bank's financial statements
in the period of initial application.

1.2, Foreign currency transactions and balances

a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in US dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreigh
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Financial assets
i. Initial recognition

The Bank recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Accordingly, the Bank uses trade date accounting for regular way contracts when recording
financial asset transactions. All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the financial asset.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition the Bank classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
(a) amortised cost; (b) fair value through profit or less {('FVPL'); or fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVOCI'). The classification varies depending on whether the financial asset
is a debt or an equity instrument.

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's
perspective such as loans, government and corporate bonds, and units held in collective investment
schemes (also known as puttable shares).

Equity instruments are contracts that evidence a residual interest in an entity's assets after deducting
all of its liabilities. Examples of equity instruments include non-puttable ordinary shares, some types
of preference shares, and share warrants or written call options that allow the holder to subscribe for
or purchase a fixed number of non-puttable ordinary shares in the issuing entity in exchange for a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset. The Bank does not have any investments in equity
instruments.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on:

» The Bank’s business model for managing the asset; and
«  The cash flow characteristic of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement categories.

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI'), and that are not designated
at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets are adjusted by
any expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described in Note 3. Inferest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest
rate method.

+« FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent sclely payments of principal and interest, and
that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVYOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised cost which are all
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from ecuity to profit or loss and recognised in
‘Net gain or loss on disposal of financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income’. Interest income from these financiai assets is included in ‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest rate method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Financial assets - continued
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement - continued

+  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss within ‘Net trading
income’ in the period in which it arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that were
designated at fair value or which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented
separately in ‘Net trading gains/(losses)’. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in ‘Interest Income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Business model: the business model reflecis how the Bank manages the assets in order to generate
cash flows. That is, whether the Bank’s objective is solely fo collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets {"Amortised cost”) or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising
from the sale of assets (‘FVOCI'). If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other business model and
measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for a group
of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assefs were collected, how the
asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are
assessed and managed and how managers are compensated. Securities held for trading are held
principally for the purpose of selling in the near termor are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking. These securities are classified in the 'other’ business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instrumenis’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPP| test’). In making this assessment, the
Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
l.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Bank reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following
the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

iii. De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or when the Bank has transferred its contractual right to receive the cash flows of the
financial assets, and either:

« substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or
o the Bank has neither retained nor transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, but has not
retained control.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Financial assets - continued
iv. Impairment of amortised cost and FVOCI financial assetfs

Expected credit losses ("ECL’) are recognised for loans and advances to banks and customers, other
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, and certain credit
related commitments.

Atinitial recognition, an allowance (or provision in the case of credit related commitments) is required
for ECL resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months, or less, where the
remaining life is less than 12 months (“12-month ECL"). In the event of a significant increase in credit
risk ("SICR’}, an allowance (or provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL'). Financial assets where 12-month
ECL is recognised are considered to be ‘Stage 1’; financial assets which are considered to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk would be classified as ‘Stage 2’; and financial assets
for which there is objective evidence of impairment, and which are so considered to be in default or
otherwise credit impaired, would be classified as ‘Stage 3'. Purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets ('POCI'} are treated differently, as set out below.

Credit impaired (Stage 3)

The Bank determines that a financial instrument is credit impaired and in Stage 3 by considering
relevant objective evidence, primarily when there are indications that the obligor is unlikely to pay. If
such unlikeliness to pay is not identified at an earlier stage, it is deemed to occur when an exposure
is 90 days past due.

Write-off

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowanceas) are normally written off, either partially or
in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after
receipt of any proceeds from the realisation of security. In circumstances where the net realisable
value of any collateral has been determined and there is no reasonable expectation of further
recovery, write-off may be earlier.

Reneqgotiation

Loans are identified as renegotiated and classified as credit impaired when contractual payment
terms are modified due to significant credit distress of the borrower. Renegotiated loans, that are not
derecognised, remain classified as credit impaired until there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a
significant reduction in the risk of non-payment of future cash flows. These leans could be transferred
to Stage 1 or 2 based on the mechanism as described below by comparing the risk of a default
occurring at the reporting date (based on the modified contractual terms) and the risk of a default
occurring at initial recognition (based on the original, unmedified contractual terms).

A loan that is renegotiated is derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new
agreement is made on substantially different terms, or if the terms of an existing agreement are
modified such that the renegotiated loan is a substantially different financial instrument. Loans that
arise following derecognition events may be considered POCI.
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1.

Summary of significant accounting policies - continuad

1.3 Financial assets — continued
iv. Impairment of amortised cost and FVYOCI financial assels - continued

Loan modifications that are not credit impaired

Loan modifications that are not identified as renegotiated are considered to be commercial
restructuring. Where a commercial restructuring resuits in a modification (whether legalised through
an amendment to the existing terms or the issuance of a new loan contract) such that the Bank's
rights to the cash flows under the original contract have expired, the old loan is derecognised and
the new loan is recognised at fair value. The rights to cash flows are generally considered o have
expired if the commercial restructure is at market rates and no payment-related concession has been
provided,

Significant increase in credit risk {Stage 2)

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed
at each reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument. The assessment compares the risk of default occurring at the reporting
date compared with that at initial recognition, taking into account reasonable and supportable
information, including information about past events, current conditions and future economic
conditions. While it is not possible to provide a single set of criteria that will determine what is
considered to be a significant increase in credit risk, the Bank considers that a financial assef has
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when one or more of the following backstop criteria
have been met:

+ Actual or expected forbearance or restructuring;

« Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating results of the borrower;

« Significant change in collateral value (securad facilities only) which is expected to increase risk
of default; and

¢ Early signs of cashflow/liquidity problems such as delay in servicing of trade creditors/loans.

Further, unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffered a
significant increase in credit risk when 30 days past due.

The Bank considers certain financial assets as having ‘low credit risk’ in terms of paragraphs 5.5.10
and B5.5.23 of IFRS 9. These include halances with the Central Bank of Malta, loans and advances
to banks and investment securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
This consideration is made in the light of the fact that all obligors within these categories are
considered by the Bank to have a strong capacity o meet their obligations, and that adverse changes
in economic conditions should not reduce their ability to fulfil obligations.

The Bank assumes that the credit risk on these financial assets has not increased significantly since
initial recegnition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk, within the meaning
of paragraph 5.5.10 of IFRS 9, at the reporting date. If, on the other hand, these financial assets
suffer a significant increase in credit risk, for example following a downgrade to below investment
grade, the financial instrument will be re-classified as a Stage 2 exposure. This will impact the
measurement of the loss allowance, moving from a 12-month ECL assumption to a lifetime ECL
assumption.
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1.

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.3 Financial assets — continued
fv. Impairment of amortised cost and FVOC! financial assefs - continued

Unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk {(Stage 1)

ECL resuiting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (12-month ECL) are
recognised for financial instruments that remain in Stage 1.

Purchased or originated credit impaired

Financial assets that are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses are considered to be POCL.

This population includes the recognition of a new financial instrument following a renegotiation where
concessions have been granted for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, where the Bank’s assessment is such that the repayment according to the modified
contractual terms are still doubtful. The amount of change-in-lifetime ECL is recognised in profit or
loss until the POCI is derecognised, even if the lifetime ECL are less than the amount of ECL included
in the estimated cash flows on initial recognition.

Mavement between stages

Financial assets can be transferred between the different categories (other than POCI). Financial
instruments are transferred out of Stage 2 if their credit risk is no longer considered to be significantly
increased since initial recognition based on the assessments described above, Financial instruments
are transferred out of Stage 3 when they no longer exhibit any evidence of credit impairment as
described above. Renegotiated loans that are not derecognised will continue to be in Stage 3 until
there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant reduction in the risk of non-payment of future
cash flows, observed over a minimum one-year period and there are no other indicators of
impairment.

Measurement of expected credit losses

ECLs are measured on either a 12-month (“12M’} or lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether as asset is considered to be
credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (‘PD’),
Exposure at Default ('EAD’), and Loss Given Defauli ('LGD"), defined as follows:

» The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
“Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD"), or
over the remaining lifetime (‘Lifetime PD’} of the obligation.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Financial assets - continued

iv. Impairment of amortised cost and FVOC/ financial assets - continued

s The EAD is based on the amounts the Bank expects to be owed at the time of default, over the
next 12 months (“12 EAD") or over the remaining lifetime ("Lifetime EAD"). For example, for a
revolving commitment, the Bank includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that
is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

s The LGD represents the Bank’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of ccllateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default.
LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to me made if the defauit occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the
percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime
of the loan.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for each
individual exposure. These three components are multiplied together effectively calculating the ECL
for each future month, which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount
rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity
profile is developed by applying forward looking macroeconomic variables to historical defaulf rates,
taking into consideration the likelihcod of survival. As part of this process, marginal PDs are
determined through interpolation. For the Lending portfolio, the historical default rates are based on
the Bank’s historical experience. For assets that are defined to have low credit risk in terms of IFRS
9, to derive coherent PDs, proxy unconditional PDs taken from reputable credit rating agencies are
used.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, based on
contractual repayments owed by the borrower.

The LGD is determined based on factors which impact the recoveries made post default. This is
primarily based on collateral type and projected collateral values, discounts to values, time to
repossession and recovery costs observed.

The Bank applies forward economic scenarios into the calculation of ECL by incorporating the effect
of macroeconomic variables into the estimation of the term structure of the PD under three scenarios.
They represent a 'most likely outcome’ {the Central scenario), and two, less [ikely 'outer’ scenarios,
referred to as the Upside and Downside scenarios, weighted by an appropriate probability of
occurrence.

There have been no significant changes in estimation technigues or significant assumptions made
during the reporting period.
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1.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultansously.

1.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including currency forwards and swaps, are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into, and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values for currency forwards are determined using forward
exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period. Discounting techniques, reflecting the fact
that the respective exchange or settlement will not occur until a future date, are used when the time
value of money has a significant effect on the fair valuation of these instruments.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1.6 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring {o use specific software. These costs are amortised over the estimated useful live of the
assets of five years. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unigue
software products controlled by the Bank are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software product and use it;

there is an ability to use the software product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic

benefits;

¢ adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
the software product are available; and

» the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably

measured.

At the end of each reporting period, intangible assets are reviewed for indications of impairment or
changes in estimated future economic benefits. If such indications exist, the intangible assets are
analysed to assess whether their carrying amount is fully recoverable (Note 1.8).

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment is staied at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.7 Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

L.easehold improvements 20
Furniture and fittings 20
Computer hardware 20
Office equipment 33

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 1.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in profit or l0ss.

1.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating units). The impairment test
can also be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use can
be determined reliably.

1.9 Leases
The Bank is the lessee

At the inception of a contract, the Bank assesses if the confract is or contains a lease and hence
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Lease liabilities arising from such contracts are measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate, which is the rate that the Bank
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

The Bank measures the associated right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability at
the date at which the leased asset is made available for use.

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant period rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.
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1.¢ Leases - continued

The right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term.

Reassessment is required when the terms and conditions of a contract are changed. Lease liabilities
are remeasured when;

There are changes in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or rate;
There are changes in the Bank's assessment of whether it will exercise an extension option; or

» There are modification in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not part of the
original term.

Lease liabilities are remeasured with a cerresponding adjustment to the right-of-use assets, or an
adjustment in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability.

The Bank elects not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low value leases or
leases with a term shorter than 12 months. Lease payments relating to these leases are expensed
to profit or less on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.10 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

1.11 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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1.12 Financial liabilities

The Bank recognises a financial liability on its statement of financial position when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank'’s financial liabilities are composed of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (classified as ‘Derivative financial instruments')
and financial liabilities which are not at fair value through profit or loss {classified as “Other liabilities")
under IFRS 9. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair value, being the fair
value of consideration received, net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or the issue of the financial liability, these liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
The Bank derecognises a financial liability from its statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract or arrangement is discharged, is cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise principally amounts owed to banks,
amounts to customers, trade and other payables (Note 1.13) together with other liabilities.

Derivatives are categorised as financial liabilities classified as held for trading. Gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified held for trading are included directly
in profit or loss and are reported as 'Net trading gains/(losses)’. Interest expense on financial liabilities
held for trading is included in ‘Net interest income’,

1.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables comprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.14 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is {a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the cccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity; or (b) a present obligation that arises from past events but
is not recognised because: (i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (ii} the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

36




G BANK (MALTA} LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

1. Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.15 Off-balance sheet instruments

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued
such as for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit for which an obligation to make a
payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements as
contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit such as shipping guarantees.

The Bank may, in the normal course of business, receive legal claims against it. Where appropriate
the Bank recognises a provision for liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of economic
resources embodying economic benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can be
made of the obligation. As at the end of the reporting period, there were no legal claims against the
Bank.

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer
in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees whether cancellable or not or letters of credit and
the Bank has not made payments at the end of the reporting pericd, those instruments are included
in these financial statements as commitments.

1.16 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within
‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses.

The calculation includes alt fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts,

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

1.17 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Loan origination fees received by the Bank for loans which are probable of being drawn
down, are an integral part of generating an involvement with the resulting financial instrument and,
together with the related direct costs, are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate on the loan using the effective interest method. Commissions and fees arising from
negotiating a transaction are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.
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1.18 Employee benefits
Funded defined contribution plan

The Bank operates a post-employment scheme, which consists of a defined contribution pension
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Bank has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

Expenses relating to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss, within
administrative expenses.

1.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value. Cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with |less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

1.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Bank's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Bank's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Bank's shareholders.

2, Financial risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and these activities involve the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Bank’s
aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse
effects on the entity’s financial performance.

The Board of directors oversees credit, market, funding and liquidity, operational and strategic
business risks. The Bank has developed an integrated risk management framewocrk to identify,
assess, manage and report risks and risk adjusted returns.

The Bank's risk management policies are designed te identify and analyse risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Board is responsible for the overall effectiveness of the risk
management function, which function is however carried out by all the members of the Bank's
management.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

The Bank's treasury function is responsible for managing assets, liabilities and the overall financial
position and is also responsible for the management of funding and liquidity risks. The Bank’s risk
oversight function has the overall responsibility for the development of the entity's risk strategy and
the implementation of risk principles, framework, pelicies and related limits.

{(a) Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial
loss for the Bank by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the
Bank’'s business; accordingly, management carefully manages its exposure to this risk. Credit
exposures arise principally through the Bank’s participation in trade financing transactions, through
the Bank's transactions with correspondent banks, and through its investments in debt securities and
other exposures arising from its investing activities.

The current financial year continued to be characterised by the economic impacts resulting from the
COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, during 2021, the Bank retained the tighter credit criteria for
accepling new business infroduced in 2020, particularly for sectors that have attracied heightened
levels of credit risk, such as borrowers involved in metals, mining or the energy sector, and therefore
continued to focus on financing corporates invelved in basic necessities, which have been less
impacted by the pandemic, predominantly companies involved in the delivery of agricultural
products, softs and fertilizers. In addition, as part of its credit assessment on origination of a
transaction, the Bank has continued to perform a logistical viability assessment and has also
continued to monitor commodity prices at more frequent rate in view of their importance to the
creditworthiness of the transactions financed by the Bank.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors — continued
{a) Credit risk — continued

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk frem on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet financial instruments, before taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For financial assets recognised on the statement of financial position, the maximum
exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For loan commitments that are irrecoverable
over the life of the respective facilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is generally the full
amount of the committed facilities.

2021 2020
Uss Uss
Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets:
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss:
Investment in units in money market funds (Note 5) 8,724,553 12,753,833
Debt securities (Note 5) 19,382,610 14,931,170
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Debt securities (Note 5) 22,039,339 26,642,789
Financial assets held for trading:
Derivative financial instruments (Note 6) 813 988,202
Amortised cost:
Balances with Central Bank of Malta (Note 4) 13,536,400 12,012,708
Debt securities (Note 5) 20,734,324 -
Loans and advances to banks (Note 7) 37,863,330 50,860,329
Loans and advances to customers (Note 8) 60,996,460 63,946,717
Accrued interest income and other receivables (Note 13) 4,573,521 4,619,176
187,851,350 186,754,924
Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet
instruments:
Commitments and contingencies (Note 20) 13,512,490 13,638,823

The exposures set out in the preceding table are based on carrying amounts as reported in the
statement of financial position. The table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to
the Bank as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, without taking account of any collateral held or any
other credit enhancements attached.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors — continued

{a) Credit risk — continued

The following disclosure presents the gross carrying/nominal amounts of financial instruments
measured at amortised cost to which the impairment requirements in IFRS 9 are applied and the
associated allowance for ECL, as well as the fair value of financial instruments measured at FVOCI
and the associated allowance for ECL.

Amortised cost

Balances with Central Bank of Malta
Debt securities

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Accrued income and other assets

Total gross carrying amount on- balance
sheet

Commitments and other contingencies

Total nominal amount off-balance sheet

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Debt securities

The Bank is also exposed to credit risk in relation to FVPL and derivative financial instruments amounting

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Gross Allowance for Gross Allowance for
carrying/nominal ECL carrying/nominat ECL
amount amount
uss Us$ Uss$ US$
13,537,001 601 12,013,185 487
20,741,916 7,692 - -
37,953,725 90,395 50,954,604 04,275
62,646,787 1,650,327 65,477,030 1,530,313
4,589,303 15,782 4,636,054 16,878
139,468,732 1,764,697 133,080,883 1,641,853
13,512,490 - 13,638,823 -
13,512,490 - 13,638,823 -
152,981,222 1,764,697 146,719,706 1,641,953

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Fair value Memorandum Fair value Memorandum
allowance for allowance for

ECL ECL

uss uss Uss Uss
22,039,339 12,117 26,642,789 10,460
22,039,339 12,117 26,642,789 10,460

to US$28,107,163 (2020: US$27,685,003) and US$813 (2020: US$988,202), respectively.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors — continued
{a) Credit risk — continued

As referred to previously, the COVID-19 pandemic and the consequential economic conditions have
exacerbated the level of uncertainty with respect to the identification of customers that would have
experienced a SICR or that exhibit unlikeliness to pay ('UTP’) characteristics. In this respect, during
2021, more information became available in respect of the impact of COVID-19 on the Bank's
borrowers which has decreased the risk associated with the late identification of increased credit
risk. Moreover, the Bank benefits from being able to assess borrowers’ repayment capabilities due
to the short-term nature of the facilities that it extends to such borrowers,

The following table presents the distribution, by stage, of financial instruments to which the

impairment requirements in IFRS @ are applied, and the associated ECL as at 31 December 2021

and as at 31 December 2020. The financial assets recorded in each stage have the following

characteristics:

» Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk on which a 12-month allowance
for ECL is recognised;

» Stage 2: a significant increase in credit risk has been experienced since initial recognition on
which a lifetime ECL is recognised;

» Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore considered to be credit impaired on
which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Gross carrying/nominal amount Allowance for ECL
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
uss$ uss us$ us$ uUss uss$ Uss uss

Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets:

Balances with Central Bank of Malta 13,637,001 - - 13,537,001 601 - - 601
Investment securities 42,781,255 - - 42,781,255 19,709 - - 19,709
Loans and advances to banks 37,953,725 - - 37,953,725 90,395 - - 90,395
Loans and advances to customers 59,107,397 - 3,639,390 62,646,787 827,597 - 822,730 1,650,327
Accrued income and other assets 4,585,586 - 3,717 4,589,303 15,282 - 500 15,782
157,964,964 - 3,643,107 161,508,071 953,584 - 823,230 1,776,814

Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet:
Commitments and other

contingencies 13,512,430 - - 13,512,490 " - -
At 31 December 2021 171,477,454 - 3,543,107 175,020,561 953,584 - 823,230 1,776,814
Credit risk exposures relating to

on-balance sheet assets:

Balances with Central Bank of Maita 12,013,195 - - 12,013,195 487 . - 487
Investment securities 26,642,789 - - 26,642,789 10,4580 - - 10,460
Loans and advances to banks 50,954,604 - - 50,954,604 84,275 - - 84,275
Loans and advances to customers 58,840,092 2,979,629 3,657,309 65477,030 717643 158,787 653,883 1,530,313
Accrued income and other assets 4,154,083 26,786 455205 4,636,054 13,463 1,383 2,032 16,878

152,604,743 3006415 4,112,514 159,723,672 836,328 160,170 655915 1,652,413

Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet:
Commitments and other
contingencies 13,638,823 - - 13,638,823 - - - -

At 31 December 2020 166,243,566 3006415 4,112,514 173,362,485 836,328 160,170 655915 1,652,413
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors — continued

(a) Credit risk - continued

Loans and advances fo customers

The following table presents loans and advances to customers by industry and geographical
concentration and by stage allocation, as well as the associated ECL as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. For the purposes of this table, the Bank has allocated exposures to regions based on the
country of domicile of the respective counterparties or customers.

By industry

Wholesale trade of
commaodity
products

Manufactured/
processed

commaodity
products

Transport
At 31 December

By geography
Latin America
Malta

Other EU countries
Rest of world

At 31 December

By industry

Wholesale trade of
cormmodity
products

Manufactured!
processed

commodity
products

Transport
At 31 December

By geography
Latin America
Malta

Other EU countries
Rest of world

At 31 December

2021

Gross carrying amount Allowance for ECL
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
uss uss uss uss uss uss uss uss
439,131,359 - 1,472,113 50,603,472 734,085 - 544,681 1,278,766
2,750,250 - 2,067,277 4,817,567 26,736 - 278,049 304,785
7,225,748 - - 7,225,748 66,776 - - 66,776
59,107,397 - 3,639,390 62,646,787 827,597 - 822,730 1,650,327
7,097,62% - 2,067,277 9,164,916 101,857 - 278,045 379,906
4,980,324 - - 4,980,324 86,255 - - 86,255
2,447,162 - - 2,447,162 13,508 - - 13,508
44,582,272 - 1,472,113 46,054,385 625,977 - 544,681 1,170,658
59,107,397 - 3,539,390 62,646,787 827 597 " 822,730 1,650,327

2020

Gross carrying amount Allowance for ECL
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
uss Uss uss uss uss uss uss uss
38,855,956 2,979,629 1,472,112 43,307,697 505,199 158,787 427,060 1,091,046
2,957,137 - 2,185,197 5,142,334 51,927 - 226,823 278,750
17,026,999 - - 17,026,899 180,517 - - 160,517
58,840,092 2,979,629 3,657,308 65,477,030 717,643 158,787 653,883 1,530,313
7,896,480 - 2,185,197 10,081,677 77,846 - 226,823 304,669
3,563,058 - - 3,563,058 66,422 - - 66,422
59,655 - - 59,655 655 - - 655
47,320,899 2,979,629 1,472,112 51,772,640 572,720 158,787 427,060 1,158,567
58,840,092 2,978,629 3,657,309 65,477,030 717,643 188,787 653,883 1,530,313
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{a) Credit risk - continued

In order to manage its principal risk exposures arising from its financial assets, primarily its loans and
advances fo customers, the Bank compiles and updates due diligence reports in respect of these
financial assets, in most circumstances referring to external reviews of the primary borrowers and
the respective assignees of export receivables carried out by agencies such as Dun and Bradstreet
or their equivalents.

The creditworthiness of counterparties or customers is formally evaluated and appropriate exposure
limits are established. Credit review procedures are designed to identify at an early stage, exposures
which require more detailed monitoring and review. Exposure to credit risk is managed through
regular analysis of the ability of counterparties and potential counterparties to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by changing the exposure limits where deemed appropriate. The
Bank manages adherence to limits by reference to reporting mechanisms covering exposures and
controls concentrations of risk wherever they are identified.

The Bank focuses on the compilation, together with ongoing and event-driven updating of due
diligence analyses taking cognisance of actual account developments, repayment history, ability to
meet commitments and collateral measurement.

The Bank's approach when granting credit facilities is based on the customer's capacity to repay
rather than placing primary reliance cn credit risk mitigants. Notwithstanding, as part of the Bank’s
credit risk mitigation techniques, the Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers,
for which the nature and level generally depends on the amount of the exposure, the type of facility
provided, the term of the facility and the level of credit risk involved.

The most common practice used by the Bank to mitigate credit risk with respect to loans and
advances to customers is securing collateral. The main collateral types obtained by the Bank to
secure against losses from loans and advances to customers are {a) cash; (b) morfgaged assets; (c)
goods or commodities under shipment; as well as (d) guarantees received/insurance and pledges
on borrowers’ assets {‘Other’).

The following table presents the Bank's loans and advances to customers and the related interest
receivable, gross of impairment allowances, together with the type of collateral attached to the loan
at full value and amount covering the loan by stage classification.

Gross on- Net

balance sheet Mortgaged Goods/ maximum

31 December 2021 exposure Cash assets Commodities Other exposure
Stage 1 59,234,769 6,401,346 7,225,748 25,080,256 4,027,337 16,500,082
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Stage 3 3,543,106 - - 2,067,277 - 1,475,829

62,777,875 6,401,346 7,225,748 27,147,633 4,027,337 17,975,911
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a) Credit risk - continued

Gross on- Net

balance sheet Mortgaged Goods/ maximum

31 December 2020 exposure Cash assets Commodities Other exposure
Stage 1 59,037,912 3,602,177 19,291,998 20,546,751 3,429985 12,167,001
Stage 2 3,008,415 - - - - 3,008415
Stage 3 3,676,881 - - 2,995,163 - 681,718

65,720,791 3,602,177 19,291,998 23,541,914 3,429,985 15,855,134

The Bank is exposed to a significant concentration of credit risk with respect to its loans and advances
tc customers as they are due from a limited number of customers. The following tables sets out the
loans and advances to customers deemed to be large exposures for regulatory reporting purposes,
prior to any eligible exemptions, in accordance with the requirements of Part Four of the Capital
Requirements Regulations (CRR), Large Exposures. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no loans and
advances to customers were deemed to be prohibited large exposures in terms of the CRR.

The following table presents the Bank's loans and advances to customers which are deemed to be
large exposures by stage:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
us$ Uss Uss uss
As at 31 December 2021:
Gross carrying/nominal amount 12,453,547 - - 12,453,547
Allowance for ECL 160,662 - - 160,662
Percentage of loans and
advances to customers
19.88% - - 19.88%
As at 31 December 2020:
Gross carrying/nominal amount 22,865,640 - - 22,865,640
Allowance for ECL 226,221 - - 226,221
Percentage of loans and
advances to customers 34.92% - - 34.92%

Unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffered a significant
increase in credit risk when they are 30 days past due ('DPD’) and are transferred from Stage 1 to
Stage 2. Past due financial instruments are those loans where customers have failed fo make
payments in accordance with the contractual terms of their facilities.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Bank had no loans and advances to customers classified as
Stage 2 which were past due.
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2,

Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continuad
(a) Credit risk - continued

There are instances where the contractual terms of a loan may be modified, due to for example,
changing market conditions and other factors not related to the credit quality of a customer. Where
however, the modifications to contractual terms relate to a customer's financial difficulties, this is
referred to as forbearance. Loan forbearance is undertaken by the Bank very selectively and is only
granted in situations where the Bank assesses that the customer has the ability to meet the revised
contractual terms, As part of its forbearance measures, the Bank may extend payment terms, reduce
interest or principal repayments, and defer foreclosure of collateral.

Forbearance is objective evidence of impairment and a forborne loan is deemed to be credit impaired
(i.e. Stage 3) when there has been a change in contractual cash flows as a result of a concession
which the Bank would otherwise not consider, and it is probable that the customer would be unable
to meet the contractual payment obligations in full. Forborne loans are not classified as credit
impaired (i.e. Stage 3) where the contractual cash flows arising from the forbearance measures are
expected to be collected in full.

When a loan is restructured as part of a forbearance strategy and the restructuring results in a
derecognition of the existing loan, the new loan is considered forborne. A [oan that is renegotiated is
derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified, such that the renegotiated loan
is substantially a different financial insfrument.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank classified exposure balances for two borrowers as forborne
amounting to US$2,067,277 and US$1,472,113 both of which are classified in Stage 3. As at 31
December 2020, the Bank classified exposure balances for three borrowers as forborne, of which
one borrower was in Stage 2 amounting to US$479,622 and two berrowers were in Stage 3
amounting to US$3,657,309. The corresponding allowance for ECL amounted to US$822,730 (2020:
US%81,654 and US$653,883 on Stage 2 and Stage 3 exposures, respectively).

The total renegotiated/forborne loans and advances to customers for 2021 represent 5.65% (2020:
6.32%) of total gross loans and advances to customers. The total interest income recognised in 2021
in respect of forborne assets amounted to US$43,565 (2020: US$340,157).
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Financial risk management — continued
2.1 Financial risk factors ~ continued
{a) Credit risk — continued

The following table shows the movement in forbearance activity during the year:

2021 2020
uss Uss$
At 1 January 3,401,401 4,012,405
Repayments (131,242) {611,004)
Amounts written off (466,306) -
Increase in provision (87,193) -
At 31 December 2,716,660 3,401,401
Forborne loans are analysed by geographical location as follows:
2021 2020
uUss$ uss
As at 31 December
Latin America 1,789,228 1,958,374
Rest of world 927,430 1,443,027

2,716,660 3,401,401

The following disclosure provides a reconciliation by stage of the Bank’s gross carrying/nominal
amount and allowances for loans and advances to customers.

Transfers across stages represent the impact of stage transfers upon the gross carrying/nominal
amount and associated allowance for ECL of the financial instruments that are outstanding at the
beginning of the year.

The ‘Net remeasurement of ECL arising from stage fransfers’ represents the increase or decrease
in ECL due to moving, for example, from a 12-month (Stage 1) to a lifetime (Stage 2) ECL
measurement basis or vice versa. Net remeasurement excludes the movements resulting from
changes in risk parameters such as changes in PDs and LGDs when compared to those used for
the previous reporting period. This is captured, along with other credit quality movements in the
‘Changes in risk parameters’ line item which shows the impact of changes in risk parameters in
respect of the allowances specifically for loans and advances to customers outstanding at the
beginning of the year. The impact of model overlays is also included within the 'Changes in risk
parameters’ line item.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(a) Credit risk — continued

The ‘Net new and further lending/repayments’ represent the gross carrying/nominal amount and
associated ECL impact from volume movements within the Bank's lending portfolio, i.e. originations
and repayments during the financial reporting period. Accordingly, loans criginated during the year
are classified in the table below using the respective stage classification as at the end of the reporting
period, without the effect of stage transfers from origination. The allowance in respect of these is
included using the current year's risk parameters, and therefore no such impact is included within
the ‘Changes in risk parameters’ line item. Similarly, stage transfers in respect of loans and advances
originated or repaid during the year are also included within the ‘Net new and further
lending/repayments’ line item.

As illustrated in the following table, the increase in ECLs for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 is mainly driven by the increase in ECLs attributable to Stage 3 borrowers, mainly as a result
of the perceived increase in credit risk associated with the recoverability of such exposures.

The increases in ECLs for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 were driven by the increase
in the volume of loans and advances to customers when compared to 31 December 2019, but also
by the more pessimistic outlook that existed as at 31 December 2020 when compared to prior years.
In this context, during 2020, management introduced overlays within the ECL model, implemented
through the introduction of floors in respect of certain key model parameters to ensure that the level
of credit loss allowances recognised at the reporting daie in respect of Stage 1 and Stage 2 borrowers
remained appropriate,

Despite the improved loss history of the Bank, given the high level of uncertainty that exists in respect
of the global economic outlook as at 31 December 2021, management has decided to retain the
floors introduced during 2020 also throughout and as at 31 December 2021, resulting in minimal
ECLs impacts associated with changes in risk parameters.
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2. Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(a) Credit risk - continued

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Bank incorporates forward-looking economic forecasts into its ECL
estimates.

More specifically, the Bank applies forward economic scenarios into the calculation of ECL by
incorporating the effect of macroecenomic variables into the estimation of the term structure of the
PD. In order to model the impact of economic scenarios on PDs, the Bank determines, through a
historical analysis, which macroeconomic variables correlate best to the Bank's default rates. The
impact of these scenarios on PD is modelled over a period equal to the remaining maturity of
underlying asset. The macro-aconomic variable with the strongest correlation is the World Real GDP
growth.

IFRS 9 does not require every possible scenario to be identified. However, it requires the Bank to
estimate ECLs by taking into consideration multiple forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios, since
the use of a single ‘most likely’ scenaric is not deemed sufficient.

In this respect, the Bank has adopted the use of multiple scenarios representative of forecast
economic conditions sufficient to calculate unbiased expected losses and sources different publicly
available economic forecasts from reputable international institutions that represent a ‘most likely
outcome' {the Central scenario) and less likely ‘outer’ scenarios. Each scenario is weighted by a
probability of occurrence, determined by a combination of macroeconomic research and expert
judgment. As a result, the measurement of ECLs in line with IFRS 9 involves the use of significant
judgement firstly in selecting the central and outer scenarios and secondly in determining the severity
of those scenarios and as a result the respective probability of cccurrence for each scenario used.

The macroeconomic scenarios used in the Bank's modelling of credit loss allowances as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 reflect possible macroeconomic paths taking into consideration a range
of potential economic impacts driven by epidemiological assumptions in respect of the COVID-19
pandemic, progress in rollouts of vaccination programmes, efficacy of vaccines and restrictions
imposed at national level by various governments, as well as government support schemes and
regulatory relief measures.

During 2021, management selected a baseline scenario and one alternative scenario (2020: two
alternative scenarios),

The following table presents the World’s Real GDP growth rate for the 3 forecasted years and the
probabilities of occurrence assigned to each scenaric by management. The macroeconomic
forecasts used for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 corresponds to the forecasts for the
period 2022 - 2024. The macroeconomic forecasts used for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 corresponds to the forecasts for the period 2021 - 2023.

World Real GDP growth rate (Year-on-Year)

Financial year Probability of

ended 31 Macroeconomic scenario Year 1 Year2 Year3

December occurrence

2021 Central scenario 2.0% 3.2% 3.3% 55%
Downside scenario 0.8% 4.2% 3.3% 45%

2020 Central scenario 4.0% 3.8% 3.8% 53%
Downside scenario -0.7% 1.8% 1.8% 13%
Upside scenario 4.8% 4.7% 4.7% 33%
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2. Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a) Credit risk - continued

The ECL outcome is naturally sensitive to estimations made in this regard. As a result, management
assessed and considered the sensitivity of the ECL outcome against the ferward-looking economic
conditions as part of the ECL governance process.

As at 31 December 2021, the sensitivity of the ECL outcome to the economic forecasts was assessed
by recalculating the ECL under the scenarios described above for the loan portfolios, applying a
100% weighting to each scenario.

In this respect, if the ECL outcome was estimated solely on the basis of the Central scenario, the
credit loss allowances in respect of the loan portfolios would decrease by US$34,341 (2020:
US$228,375) compared to the weighted average credit loss allowances estimated at year end
amounting to US$1,650,327 (2020: US$1,530,313). If the ECL outcome was estimated solely on the
basis of the Downside scenario, the credit loss allowances in respect of the loan portfolios would
increase by US$41,971 (2020: US$815,088) compared to the weighted average credit loss
allowances estimated at year end. In 2020, if the ECL outcome was estimated solely on the basis of
the Upside scenario, the credit loss allowances in respect of the loan portfolios would have
decreased by US$391,866 compared to the weighted average credit loss allowances estimated at
year end.

As at 31 December 2021, the sensitivity impact was not considered to be significant in view of the
above, particularly when considering that a 100% weighting to the Downside scenario leads to an
increase in ECLs of less than US$50,000. During 2020, the Downside scenario led to an increase
in ECLs of more than US$800,000. This is attributable to the fact that as at 31 December 2020, the
level of uncertainty around the efficacy of the covid-19 mitigation measures was higher than as at 31
December 2021 leading to a more severe downside scenario than as at 31 December 2021.

Loans and advances to banks and other financial assets

In the normal course of business, the Bank places funds, carries out transactions and enters into
forward foreign exchange contracts or currency swaps with specific high quality locally listed banks
and international banks having a very high credit rating, subject to the application of a limit framework.

As part of its treasury management activities the Bank invests in debt instruments issued by local
and foreign governments, listed debt securities issued by foreign corporates generally with high credit
quality and strong financial background as well as in rated sub-investment grade debt instruments.
These transactions are monitored through the practical use of exposure limits. All such investments
are listed on the Malta Stock Exchange, which is currently the only locally-based Recognised
Investment Exchange (RIE) in Malta and other major stock exchanges. External ratings such as
Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used for maonitoring these credit risk exposures.

The Bank also places liquidity in excess of operational requirements in an unrated money market
fund, which seeks to invest predominantly in term deposits with Prime European Banks and Malta
Government Treasury Bills.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

fa) Credit risk - continued

The following tables present an analysis of the Bank’s financial assets by rating agency based on

Fitch ratings or their equivalent.

31 December 2021
AAA
Ab-

A

A-
BBB+
BBB
BBB-
8B+

BB

BB-

B+

B

B-

CccC
Unrated

Tofal

Financial
assets

mandatorily Financial assets Financial

Balances measured measured at fair assets

with at fair value value measured
Central Derivative through through other at Loans and
Bank financial profitor comprehensive amortised advances
of Malta instruments loss income cost to banks
uss uUss$ uss Uss Uss$ uss
- - - 348,731 - 16,229,939
- - - 444,815 - -
13,536,400 - - 18,446,196 20,734,324 -
- - - 973,932 - 6,822,140
- - - 713,824 - 4,505,234
- - - 1,111,844 - -
- - 751,259 - - -
- - 2,150,666 - - -
- 813 - - - -
- - 562,667 - - 2,886,137
- - 3,183,537 - - 7,419,880
- - 4,986,195 - - -
- - 16,472,839 - - -
13,536,400 813 28,107,163 22,039,339 20,734,324 37,863,330
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a) Credit risk - continued

Financial assets

Financial assefs

mandatorily  measured at fair

measured at fair value
Balances with Derivative value through other Loans and
Central Bank financial through profit or comprehensive advances
of Malta instruments loss income to banks
uss uss$ uss uss$ uss$

31 December 2020

AAA - - - 388,606 -
AA- - - - 124,450 4,666,444
A - - - 20,692,002 121,807
A- 12,012,708 - - 247,094 -
BBB+ - - - 1,805,321 -
BBB - - - 1,258,013 16,613,690
BBB- - 532,428 - 2,126,303 16,675,183
BB+ - - 333,977 - -
BB - - 2,562,823 - -
BB- - 384,366 3,086,265 - -
B+ - - 2,017,520 - 1,230,898
B - - 2,348,317 - 11,552,307
B- - - 2,217,599 - -

CCC - - - -
Unrated - 71,408 15,118,502 - -
Total 12,012,708 988,202 27,685,003 26,642,789 50,860,329

(b} Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from
open positions in interest rate and currency products, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange
rates on its financial position and cash flows. Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings and value
caused by a change in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises when financial assets
or liabilities are denominated in currencies which are different from the Bank’s functional currency.

The Bank funds its growth through the acceptance of deposits predominantly denominated in euro.

The Bank manages its currency risk on an ongoing basis by ensuring that foreign currency liabilities
are utilised to fund assets denominated in the same foreign currency thereby matching asset and
liability positicns as much as is practicable. When it is not possible to match the asset and liability
currency positions, the Bank hedges its open foreign exchange exposures arising from customer
deposits by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts or currency swaps.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{b) Market risk - continued

Foreign exchange risk - continued

The following tables summarise the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. Included in the tables are the Bank's financial instruments at carrying amounts,

categorised by currency.

As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets
Balances with Central Bank
of Malta
Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through
profit and loss
Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets measured at
amortised cost
Loans and advances to
banks - at amortised cost
Loans and advances to
customers — at amortised cost
Accrued income and other
assets - at amortised cost

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Amounts owed to customers —
at amortised cost

Amounts owed to banks

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities
Net on-balance sheet
position

Off-balance sheet net
noticnal position

Net currency exposure

GBP EUR Total
Us$ Uss$ Uss$ uss$
43,218 . 13,496,714 13,539,932
13,549,891 475,702 14,081,570 28,107,163
- - 22,039,339 22,039,339
- - 20,734,324 20,734,324
28,127,097 908,944 8,827,289 37,863,330
42,934,335 2,824,977 15,237,148 60,996,460
3,452,044 24 1,121,453 4,573,521
88,106,585 4,209,647 95,537,837 187,854,069
42,699,281 5,680,428 100,007,445 148,387,154
17,000,000 - - 17,000,000
- - 691,707 691,707
484,297 16,443 326,770 827,510
60,183,578 5,696,871 101,025,922 166,906,371
27,923,007 (1,487,224) (5,488,085) 20,947,698
1,448,455 5,303,818
(38,769) (184,267)
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Financial risk management - continued

2.2 Financial risk factors - continued

{b) Market risk - continued

Foreign exchange risk - continued

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets

Balances with Central Bank
of Malta

Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through
profit and loss

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Loans and advances to
banks — at amortised cost

Loans and advances to
customers — at amortised cost

Accrued income and other
assets — at amortised cost

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Amounts owed toc customers —
at amortised cost

Amounts owed to banks

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities
Net on-balance shest
position

Off-balance sheet net
hotional position

Net currency exposure

GBP EUR Other Total
Uss us$ Uss$ uss uss
243,833 - 11,774,266 - 12,018,009
8,695,595 822489 18,166,919 - 27,685,003
1,772,264 - 24,870,525 - 26,642,789
33,644,203 302,513 16,913,613 - 50,860,329
54,866,743 2,860,044 6,051,414 167,616 53,946,717
3,960,337 28 658,811 - 4,619,176
103,182,975 3,985,974 78,430,157 167,616 185,766,722
39,480,219 7,107,060 107,251,854 60 153,839,193
11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
- - 1,083,840 - 1,083,840
259,751 18,038 479,938 - 757,727
50,739,970 7,125,098 108,815,632 B0 166,680,760
52,443,005 (3,139,124) (30,385,475) 167,556 19,085,962
3,069,000 29,515,879 -
(70,124) (869,596) 167,556

Under the scenario that the US doliar appreciates against the EUR from 0.8838 to 1.0000 (2020:
from 0.8129 to 1.0000) and against the GBP from 0.7422 to 1.0000 (2020: from 0.7331 to 1.0000),
the impact recognised in profit or loss would amount to a pre-tax loss of US$63,593 (2020:
US%$181,378). If on the other hand, the US dollar depreciates against the EUR to 0.8738 (2020:
0.7316) and the GBP to 0.7322 (2020: 0.6598), the impact recognised in profit or loss would amount
to a gain before tax of US$5,034 (2020: US$104,413).
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{b) Market risk - continued

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates either through the re-pricing of floating rate instruments or
through the maturity and replacement of fixed rate instruments. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a fixed rate financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Bank's exposures analysed by their fixed or floating nature as at 31 December is shown below:

At 31 December 2021

Interest-bearing assels

Financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit and loss:

Units in a meney market fund
Dbt securities

Financial assets measurad at fair value through other comprehensive incaome;

Debt securities

Financial assets measurad at amortised cost
Debt securities

Loans and receivables — at amortised cost;
Balances with Central Bank of Malta
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances io customers

Interast-bearing liabilities
Amounts owed to customers
Amounts owed to banks

Net exposure

At 31 December 2020

Interest-bearing assets

Financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit and loss;

Units in a money market fund
Debt securities

Financial assets measured at falr value through other comprehensive income:

Debt securities

Loans and receivables — at amortised ¢ost;
Balances with Central Bank of Malta
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

Interest-bearing liabiliies
Amounts owed to customers
Amounts owed to banks

Net exposure

Floating Fixed
Rates Rates Total
uss uss Uss
8,724,553 - 8,724,553
475,702 18,906,908 19,382,610
- 22,038,339 22,039,339
- 20,734,324 20,734,324
12,758,025 - 12,758,025
37,863,330 37,863,330
36,871,202 24,125,258 60,996,460
58,829,482 123,669,159 182,498,641
38,330,265 110,056,869 148,387,154
- 17,000,000 17,000,000
38,330,265 127,056,889 165,387,154
20,499,217 {3,387,730} 17,111,487
12,753,833 - 12,753,833
315,763 14,615,407 14,931,170
- 26,642,789 26,642,789
11,547,556 - 11,647,556
- 50,860,329 50,860,329
53,226,266 10,720,451 63,946,717
77,843,418 102,838,976 180,682,394
30,552,656 123,286,637 153,839,193
- 11,000,000 11,000,000
30,552,656 134,286,537 164,839,193
47,290,762 (31,447,561) 15,843,201

57



IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Market risk - continued

interest rate risk - continued

All financial instruments issued at fixed rates expose the Bank to economic fair value interest rate
risk. Albeit, loans and advances to customers, loans and advances to banks and amounts owed to
customers are measured at amortised cost and are therefore not subject to fair value interest rate
risk for the purposes of financial reporting.

The Bank's instruments that are fair valued and which are subject to interest rate risk comprise the
Bank’s investments in money market funds which are fair valued through profit or loss (Note 5} and
debt securities measured both at fair value through other comprehensive income and through profit
or loss (Note 5). A significant propertion of the Bank’s investments in debt securities are subject to
fixed interest rates. The Bank manages this risk by using sensitivity analysis using modified duration,
which measures the potential loss in market value arising from a 100 basis-point upward parallel shift
in yields. The estimated impact of an immediate 100 basis point increase in yields as at 31 December
2021 on the fair valuation of its investments carried at fair value (debt securities and units in the
money market fund) amounts to US$193,826 (2020: US$149,312).

As outlined above, the Bank was also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk principally in respect of
certain financial assets and liabilities which were subject to floating inferest rates. Financial assets
and liabilities issued at variable rates expose the Bank to cash flow interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had increased by 1% (assuming a parallel shift of
100 basis points in yields) with all other variables held constant, in particular foreign currency rates,
the post-tax result for the year would increase by US$212,776 (2020: US$462,090). Taking
cognisance of the current low interest rate environment, the Bank does not expect interest rate to
decrease by a further 100 basis points. Accordingly, the disclosure relating to an assumed decrease
in interest rates by a 100 basis points is not deemed necessary.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Market risk - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

The following table summarises mismatch of the dates on which interest on financial assets and
financial liabilities are next reset to market rates on a contractual basis or, if earlier, the dates on
which the instruments mature as at 31 December.

Within
three Within one
Within months but year but
ohe overone overthree More than
month month months one year Total
uUs$ uUss Uss$ uss Uss$
As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets
Balances with Central Bank of Malta 12,758,025 - - - 12,758,025
Financial assets mandatorily

measured at fair value through

profit or loss 8,724,553 201,110 - 19,181,500 28,107,163
Financial assets measured at fair

value through other

comprehensive income - - - 22,039,339 22,039,339
Financial assets measured at

amortised cost - - - 20,734,324 20,734,324
Loans and advances to banks 28,250,286 245,280 9,367,764 - 37,863,330
Loans and advances to customers 38,910,212 18,030,410 2,267,110 1,788,728 60,996,460

88,643,076 18,476,800 11,634,874 63,743,891 182,498,641

Financial liabilities
Amounts owed to customers 67,308,930 17,186,461 27,826,940 36,064,773 148,387,154
Amounts owed to banks 17,000,000 - - - 17,000,000

84,308,980 17,186,461 27,826,940 36,064,773 165,387,154

Interest rate gap 4,334,096 1,290,339 (16,192,066) 27,679,118
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Market risk - continued

Interest rafe risk - continued

Within
three  Within one
Within months but year but
one overone overthree More than
month month months one year Total
uss uss$ us$ uss$ uss
As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets

Balances with Central Bank of Malta 11,547,556 - - - 11,547,556
Financial assets mandatorily

measured at fair value through

profit or loss 13,767,194 315,763 - 13,602,046 27,685,003
Financial assets measured at fair

value through other

comprehensive income - 616,588 1,011,560 25,014,641 26,642,789
Loans and advances fo banks 34,818,854 3,105,268 12,936,207 - 50,860,329
Loans and advances to customers 53,451,418 2,635,265 5,901,958 1,958,076 63,948,717

114,050,174 6,672,884 19,849,725 40,574,763 181,147,546

Financial liabilities
Amounts owed to customers 65,867,352 14,365,980 25,408,881 48,196,980 153,839,193
Amounts owed to banks 5,000,000 6,000,000 - - 11,000,000

70,867,352 20,365,980 25,408,881 48,196,980 164,839,193

Interest rate gap 43,182,822 (13,683,096) (5,559,156) (7,622,217)
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{c} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilittes when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The
consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments.

The Bank manages this risk, by maintaining a stroeng base of shareholders’ capital considering the
stages of its operations. The Bank manages its asset base with liquidity in mind, and monitors future
cash flows and changes in available liquidity on a regular basis.

The Bank holds a diversified portfolio of cash and high-quality highly-liguid securities to support
payment obligations and contingent funding in a stressed market environment. The Bank's assets
held for managing liquidity risk comprise:

short term placements with other banks;
investments in money market funds; and

+ unencumbered high quality liquid assets that are readily acceptable for repurchase agreements
with central banks.

Liquidity is managed by the Bank's freasury function and the Bank's liquidity management process,
includes:

s day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that reguirements can
be met including plans for replenishment of funds as they mature;

» maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

» monitoring the liquidity ratios of the statement of financial position against internal and
regulatory requirements; and

+ managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Moreover, sources of liguidity are regularly reviewed by the treasury function to maintain a wide
diversification by provider, product and term. Monitoring takes the form of cash flow projections for
the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management.

(i} Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Management monitors the Liquidity Coverage Ratio ('LCR') metric to gauge the short-term resilience
of the Bank's liquidity profile. The LCR, a minimum regulatory standard, aims to ensure that a bank
has sufficient unencumbered high-quality liquid assets (‘HQLA"), which consist of cash or assets that
can be converted into cash at little or no loss of value in the markets, to meet its liquidity needs in a
30-calendar-day liquidity stress scenario. As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's LCR stood at 615%
{2020: 390%) against a regulatery minimum of 100%.-

(ii) Net Stable Funding Ratio

The NSFR requires institutions to maintain sufficient stable funding relative to required stable
funding, and reflects a bank's long-term funding profile (funding with a term of more than a year). It
is designed to complement the LCR. The Bank calculates NSFR in line with the provisions of the
amendments to Regulation (EU) No.575/2013, known as the Capital Requirements Regulation
("CRR 1I"}, As at 31 December 2021 the Bank’s NSFR stood at 243% (2020: 169%) against a
regulatory minimum of 100%.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

fc} Liguidity risk - continued

(i) Net stable funding ratio - continued

The NSFR ratio as at 31 December 2021 was 243% (2020: 221%). As at 31 December 2021 and
2020 and during the respective financial periods, the NSFR was within both the regulatory minimum

and the risk appetite set by the Bank.

The following table discloses financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period by
remaining period to contractual maturity.

Within
three Within one
Within  months but year but
one over ohe over three More than No
Month month months one year maturity Total
uss uss uss uss uss uss

As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets

Balances with Central Bank of

Malta 13,536,400 - - - 3,532 13,539,932
Financial assets mandatorily

measured at fair value

through profit or loss - 201,110 - 19,181,500 8,724,553 28,107,163
Financial assets measured at

fair value through other

comprehensive income - - - 22,039,339 - 22,039,339
Financial assets measured at

armorlised cost - - - 20,734,324 - 20,734,324
Loans and advances to

banks 28,250,286 245,280 9,367,764 - - 37,863,330
Loans and advances to

customers 38,910,212 18,030,410 2,267,110 1,788,728 - 60,996,460
Derivative financial instruments - 813 - - . 813
Accrued income and other

assets 106,939 12,128 1,141,283 3,313,170 - 4,573,521

80,803,837 18,489,742 12,776,157 67,057,061 8,728,085 187,854,882

Financial liabilities

Amounts owed to customers 67,308,980 17,186,461 27,826,940 36,064,773 - 148,387,154
Amounts owed to banks 17,000,000 - - “ - 17,000,000
Lease liabilities 305 1,935 242,283 447,184 - 691,707
Derivative financial instruments - 95,599 - - - 95,599
Other liabilities 36,567 47,878 38,643 704,422 . 827,510
84,345,852 17,331,873 28,107,866 37,216,379 - 167,001,970
Maturity gap (3,542,015) 1,157,869 (15,331,709} 29,840,682
Cumuilative gap (3,542,015)  (2,384,148)  (17,715,855) 12,124,827
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(c) Liquidity risk - continued

Within
three  Within one
Within  months but year but
one over one overthree  More than No
Month month months one year maturity Total
us$ Us$ uss uss uss uss$

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets

Balances with Central Bank of

Malta 12,012,708 - - - 5,381 12,018,099
Financial assets mandatorily

measured at fair value

through profit or loss 506,635 - - 14,424,535 12,753,833 27,685,003
Financial assets measured at

fair value through other

comprehensive income - 616,588 1,011,560 25,014,641 - 26,642,789
Loans and advances to

banks 34,818,855 3,105,268 12,936,206 - - 50,860,329
Loans and advances to

customers 21,645,299 22,134,472 17,810,848 2,356,098 - 63,946,717
Derivative financial instruments 305,900 520,804 71,408 - - 988,202
Accrued income and other

assetls 3,488,614 53,634 480,905 3,842 592,181 4,619,176

72,868,101 26,430,766 32,310,927 41,799,116 13,351,405 186,760,315

Financial liabilities

Amounts owed fo custormers 65,867,352 14,365,980 25,408,881 48,196,980 - 153,839,193
Amounts owed to banks 5,000,000 6,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
Lease liabilities 2,179 204,479 47,627 829,555 - 1,083,840
Derivative financial instruments 58,576 81,763 - - - 140,339
Other liabilities 39,470 430,440 50,754 237,063 . 757,727
70,967,577 21,082,662 25,507,262 49,263,598 - 166,821,099
Maturity gap 1,900,524 5,348,104 6,803,665 (7,464,482
Cumulative gap 1,900,524 7,248,628 14,052,203 6,587,811

As at 31 December 2021, call accounts payable on demand amounting to US$38,330,265 (2020:
US$30,551,180) are disclosed within the ‘Within one month’ maturity grouping. However, in practice,
these deposits are maintained with the Bank for longer periods than one month.

As at 31 December 2021, financial assets measured at amortised cost amounting to US$8,044,294
which principally mature after more than one year, form part of the Bank’s high-quality fiquid asset
portfolio for liquidity coverage ratic (LCR} purposes. Accordingly, they can be liquidated within one
month in case the need arises, including under stress.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{c) Liguidity risk - continued

In addition, US$13,269,999 (2020:US%16,027,459) worth of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and US$12,697,622 worth of financial assets measured at
amortised cost are also deemed liguid but mostly encumbered, as they have been pledged in favour
of the Central Bank of Malta for the purpose accessing the European Central Bank’s open market
operations. As at 31 December, the Bank had drawn US$17,000,000 (2020: US$11,000,000} against
these pledged assets. In this respect, the Bank has an additional US$8,350,818 (2020:
LUS$4,919,781) against which it can access Central Bank liquidity if and when needed.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss amounting to
US$8,724,553 (2020: US$12,753,833) with no maturity represent units held by the Bank in a money
market fund, which is highly liquid. Albeit, this is pledged in favour of other counterparties, which
provide a cash line to the Bank. During 2021, this cash was never used.

Although settled on a gross basis, the amounis attributable to derivative contracts have been
included above on a net basis. Gross contractual undiscounted cashflows relating to derivative
transactions are included below.

The following table analyses the Bank’s principal undiscounted cash flows payable under non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Within Within
three one
Within months but year but
one over one over three More than Carrying
maenth menth months one year Total amount
uss uss uss uss uss uss
As at 31 December 2021
Amounts owed {o
customers 67,616,169 17,230,401 28,062,371 38,009,129 150,918,070 148,387,154
Amounts owed to banks 17,000,935 - - - 17,000,935 17,000,000
Lease liabilities 305 1,935 6,793 682,674 691,707 691,707
Cther liabilittes - 47,878 38,643 173,294 296,382 296,382
84,617,409 17,280,214 28,107,807 38,865,097 168,907,094 166,375,243
As at 31 December 2020
Amounts cwed to
customers 66,025,245 14,646,529 26,454,351 48,770,910 156,897,035 153,834,193
Amounts owed to banks 5,009,339 6,008,784 - - 11,018,123 11,000,000
Lease liabilities 2,179 204,479 47,626 829,556 1,083,840 1,083,840
Other liabilities 39,470 430,440 50,754 237,083 787,727 757,727
71,078,233 21,290,232 28,552,731 50,837,529 169,756,725 166,680,760
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{c) Liquidity risk - continued

The Bank’s currency derivatives are all settled on a gross basis. The following tables analyse the
Bank’s derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contracted undiscounted cash flows

Within three Over three
months months Total
uss$ uss uss
At 31 December 2021
Inflows 10,146,773 3,394,500 13,541,273
Outflows {10,249,372) {3,405,794) {13,655,166)
{102,599) {11,294) {113,893)
At 31 December 2020
Inflows 39,766,643 2,565,181 42,331,824
Qutflows (38,984,177 (2,499,784} (41,483,961)
782,466 85,397 847,863

{d) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. The Bank's Board of directors is primarily
responsible for the development and implementation of policies and procedures to ensure that
operational risks are managed effectively. The Bank mitigates the possibility of impact risk events
through the implementation of a business continuity plan, which encompasses risk mitigation
achieved through back-up information security infrastructures, back-up disaster recovery sites and
insurance covers over particular business risks. Such systems enable the Bank to operate on an
ongoing basis and limit losses in the event of severe business disruption,

For regulatory reporting purposes, the Bank currently uses the Basic Indicator Approach to assess
the operational risk capital requirements and accordingly allocates 15% of average gross operating
income for a three-year period in accordance with regulatory requirements. The operational risk
regulatory capital requirement as at December 2021 amounted to US$782,191 (2020: US$780,853).

85



IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Staiements - 31 December 2021

Financial risk management - continued
2.2 Capital risk management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ as
disclosed in the statement of financial position, are:

to comply with the capital requirements set by the Malta Financial Services Authority ('MFSA’);
to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

¢ to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital/own funds are monitored on an ongoing basis by
the Bank’'s management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel
Committee and the Eurcpean Union Directives and Regulations, as implemented by the MFSA for
supervisory purposes.

Minimum capital requirements are calculated for credit, market and operationai risks. During the
year, the Bank utilised the Standardised Approach for credit risk, the Basic Indicator Approach for
operational risk and the Basic Method for foreign exchange risk in order to calculate the Pillar 1
minimum capital requirements. For credit risk, under the standardised approach, risk weights are
determined according to credit ratings provided by internationally recognised credit agencies such
as Fitch or their equivalents and by using the applicable regulatory risk weights for unrated
exposures. The Basic Indicator Approach requires that the Bank allocates capital for operational risk
by taking 15% of the average gross income, while the Basic Method requires the Bank to allocate
8% of its overall net foreign exchange position to calculate the capital requirement for foreign
exchange risk.
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2. Financial risk management - continued
2.2 Capital risk management - continued

The following table shows the components of the Bank’s own funds:

2021 2020
uss Uss$
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital
Share capital 26,500,000 26,500,000
Accumulated losses (1,219,992) (1,625,307)
Fair value reserve 110,108 285,885
Other reserve 300,149 300,149
IFRS 9 transitional adjustment 185,357 259,499
Less:
Intangible assets {1,978,718)  (2,157,479)
Deferred tax assets {1,628,461) (1,760,887)
Other deductions (617,9086) (592,181)
CET1 capital 21,650,537 21,208,699
Total capital / own funds 21,650,537 21,209,699

Other deductions relate to the contributions amounting to US$617,906 (2020: US$592,181) in favour
of the Depositor Compensation Scheme as at 31 December 2021, that are not available to the Bank
for unrestricted and immediate use to cover risk of losses as soon as they occur.,

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Bank has met all external capital
requirements at all times.

2.3 Fair value of financial instruments
Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analyses financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial
position at fair value, by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

¢ Quoted prices {(unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

s Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
uncbservable inputs) (level 3). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The Bank does not hold any level 3 instruments.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.3 Fair value of financial instruments — continued

As at 31 December 2021
Assets
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss:
Units in money market funds
Debt securities

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Debt securities

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Debt Securities

Financial assets held-for-trading:
Derivative financial assets

Total financial assets at fair value

Liabilities
Financial assets held-for-trading:
Derivative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2020
Assets
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss:
Units in money market funds
Debt securities

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Debt securities

Financial assets held-for-trading:
Derivative financial asseis

Total financial assets at fair value

Liabilities

Financial assets held-for-trading:
Derivative financial liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Tofal

Us$ Uss us$
8,724,553 - 8,724,553
19,382,610 - 19,382,610
22,039,339 - 22,039,339
20,734,324 - 20,734,324
- 813 813
70,880,826 813 70,881,639
- 95,599 95,599
12,753,833 - 12,753,833
14,931,170 - 14,931,170
26,642,789 - 26,642,789
- 088,202 988,202
54,327,792 988,202 55,315,994
- 140,339 140,339

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.2 Fair value of financial instruments - continued
(a}) FEinancial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market fransactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Bank is the current bid
price.

Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily debt instruments issued by the Government of
Malta and listed on the Malta Stock Exchange as well as debt securities listed on other recognised
investment exchanges. The Bank’s level 1 instruments also include the Bank'’s investments in money
market funds the fair value of which is determined by the fund manager on a daily basis and which
is directly derived from the observable market values of the principal underlying assets.

(b} Financial instruments in Levef 2

Fair values for the Bank’s derivative contracts are determined utilising valuation techniques, involving
primarily the use of discounted cash flow techniques. The fair values referred to are determined by
reference to market prices or rates (forward foreign exchange rates) quoted at the end of the
reporting period. The valuation techniques used are supported by observable market prices or rates
since their variables include only data from observable markets. The Bank's derivative financial
instruments are accordingly categorised as level 2 instruments.

Financial instrurments not measured at fair value

Loans and advances to banks and customers and amounts owed to banks and customers are carried
at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. The directors consider the carrying amounts
of lcans and advances to customers and banks to be a reasonable estimate of their fair value
principally in view of the relatively short periods to repricing or maturity from the end of the reporting
periods. The fair value of fixed interest deposits and amounts owed to banks, is not deemed to be
significantly different from their carrying amounts, based on discounted cash flows at current market
interest rates, particularly due to the relatively short periods to maturity.

These estimates are considered level 2 fair value estimates.
Critical accounting estimates, and judgments in applying accounting policies

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the directors, other than for estimates relating to expected credit losses in respect
of the Bank’s loans and advances to customers, the accounting estimates and judgments made in
the course of preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree
which would warrant their description as critical in terms of the requirements of 1AS 1.

Accordingly, the directors believe there are no areas involving a higher degree of judgement that
would have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, and there are
no key assumptions and other key sources of estimation uncertainty relating to estimates that require
subjective or complex judgments, other than for estimates relating to expected credit losses in
respect of the Bank's loans and advances {o customers.
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgments in applying accounting policies - continued

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for loans and advances to customers is an
area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour. In this respect, a number of significant judgements are made by
management. Most notably, these include defining SICR and UTP criteria and determining whether
a SICR or UTP event has occurred. Judgement is also required in choosing appropriate assumplions
for the measurement of ECLs, both in the case of modelled ECLs for Stage 1 and Stage 2 exposures,
as well as in the case of defaulted/Stage 3 loans, which depend on estimating borrower's cashflows.

In the case of modelled ECLSs, significant judgements are also made in respect of determining the
forward-looking macroeconomic variables under different scenarios and the associated weightings
for each scenario.

The level of expert judgement required is currently exacerbated by the heightened level of estimation
uncertainty around predictions in respect of forward looking scenarios, particularly in the aftermath
of the COVID-12 pandemic and, as a result on forward-looking PDs and LGDs used within the Bank'’s
ECL medel.

In view of this uncertainty, management considered the sensitivity of the ECL outcome to the macro-
economic forecasts by recalculating the ECL under the different scenarios, applying a 100%
weighting to each scenario, the effect of which is disclosed in Note 2.1(a).

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Malta

2021 2020

Uss$ uss$
Cash in hand 3,632 5,391
Mandatory reserve deposits with Central Bank of Malta 778,375 465,152
Other balances with Central Bank of Malta 12,758,626 11,548,043
Allowances for expected credit losses (601) {(487)

13,639,932 12,018,099

Mandatory reserves atiract interest at the rate of 0%. Other balances with the Central Bank of Malta
are charged interest at the deposit facility rate set by the European Central Bank (ECB).
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Investment securities

2021 2020
us$ uss
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss:
Units in money market funds 8,724,553 12,753,833
Debt securities 19,382,610 14,931,170
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income;
Debt securities 22,039,339 26,642,789
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Debt securities 20,734,324 -

70,880,826 54,327,792

As at 31 December 2021, units held by the Bank in a money market fund had a carrying amount of
US$8,724,553 (2020: US$12,753,833).

At 31 December 2021, the Bank had pledged financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income with a carrying amount of US$13,269,999 (2020: US$16,027,459) and
financial assets measured at amortised cost with a carrying amount of US$11,544,183 in favour of
the Central Bank of Malta as security in respect of the Bank’s participation in the European Central
Bank's open market cperations (Note 18).

The Bank's debt securities consist entirely of listed securities and are analysed by issuer as follows:

2021 2020
uss$ Uss$
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss:
Foreign governments 116,771 -
Corporates and credit institutions 19,265,839 14,031,170

19,382,610 14,831,170
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5.

Investment securities - continued

2021 2020
uUs$ uss
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Local government 13,269,999 16,027,459
Foreign governments 2,350,437 2,042,581
Corporates and credit institutions 6,418,903 8,572,749
22,039,339 26,642,789
Allowances for expected credit losses
Local government (5,023) (4,929)
Foreign governments (3,411) (2,437)
Corporates and credit institutions (3,683) (3,094)
(12,117) {10,460)
2021 2020
uss$ uss
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Local government 20,741,916 -
20,741,916 -
Allowances for expected credit [osses
Local government (7,592) -
(7,592) -

Change in business model

In accordance with the Bank’s policy, changes in the business model of financial assets are possible
yet expected to be very infrequent. Prior to 2020, the Bank held a portfolio of Malta Government
Securities (MGS porifolio) to earn interest revenue but also to realise cashflows through disposal
prior to maturity, which was disposed of by March 2018.

During the second half of 2019, the Bank resumed its purchases of MGSs under the same ‘hold to
collect and sell’ business model. However, during 2020, the use of, and strategic objectives for
holding, the MGS portfolio was modified to fulfill a strategic function in support of the principal US
dollar funding mechanism as determined by the Bank.

Since the introduction of the ECB’s action to enhance the provision of US dollar liquidity in Europe
in March 2020, the Bank's MGS portfolio has been designated for use as collateral to access US
dollar funding through the ECB's monetary policy operations, given its eligibility. Due the fact that
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates is the US dollar,
accessing US dollar funding is infegral to its operations, and given that the ECB’s monetary policy
operations make the process of accessing US dollars much more efficient and cost effective for the
Bank, it has been designated as the preferred US dollar funding channel for the Bank.
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Investment securities - continued

This move, however, binds the pledged MGS portfolio into a static outlock and accordingly these
holdings cannot be disposed of. As a result, during January 2021 the Directors recognised and
resolved that the Bank would not be selling any of the positions in the MGS portfolio and that such
holdings would be held until their maturity for funding purposes.

In view of the above, the MGS portfolio that was outstanding as at the end of January 2021 and
which has a carrying amount of US$11,727,794 as at 31 December 2021, is being reclassified from
the FVOCI measurement category into the amertised cost measurement category, as the former no
longer reflects the business model of the portfolio.

Both the amortised cost measurement category and the FVOCI measurement category require that
the effective interest rate is determined at initial recognition. Thus, the reclassification has no impact
on the recognition of interest revenue and therefore the Bank will continue to use the same effective
interest rate.

Similarly, the impairment requirements for both measurement categories are applied in the same
way. However, the loss allowance previously recognised in OCl would instead be recognised as an
adjustment to the gross carrying amount of the MGS portfolic from the reclassification date, which,
in accordance with IFRS 9, is defined as “the first day of the first reporiing period following the change
in the business model that resuits in the entity reclassifying the financial assets”.

Accordingly, on 1 January 2022, the cumulative gains recognised in OCI amounting to US$44,929
attributable to the MGS portfolio that was outstanding as at 31 January 2021, has been removed
from equity and adjusted against the portfolio’s fair value. As a resulf, the MGS portfolio is measured
as at 1 January 2022 as if it had always been measured at amortised cost. This adjustment affects
other comprehensive income but does not affect profit or loss and therefore is not a reclassification
adjustment.

Simultaneously, in January 2021, the Board resclved that further MGSs should be acquired to
continue supporting the Bank's access to US dolfar funding through the ECB’s monetary policy
operations. As such, new purchases of MGSs were to be held within a ‘hold to collect’ business
model and accordingly measured at amortised cost. Consequently, as at 31 December 2021, the
Bank holds a portfolio of MGSs that were purchased subsequent to 31 January 2021, which are
measured at amortised cost and amount to US$20,734,324.
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6. Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments held at the end of each reporting period are set out
in the following table:

2021 2020
us$ uss
Derivative financial assets
- currency swaps 813 988,202
Derivative financial liabilities
- currency swaps 95,599 140,339

The Bank enters into derivative contracts, mainly currency swaps, principally to hedge the foreign
currency exposures arising out of amounts owed to customers, for risk management purposes. While
these derivative fransactions provide effective economic hedges, hedge accounting under the
requirements of IFRS 9 has not been adopted in this respect. Accordingly, these derivative contracts
held for risk management purposes have been classified as held-for-trading in these financial
statements in accordance with [FRS 9.

The derivative financial instruments held at 31 December 2021 for risk management purposes relate
to the forward purchase of £1,075,000 (2020: £2,500,000) and the forward purchase of €5,500,000
{2020: £24,330,000) against US$ maturing within one year from the end of the reporting period at
the average contractual rate of 1.3452 (2020: 1.3350) and 1.1526 (2020: 1.1974) respectively.

In addition, during 2021, the Bank transacted certain derivatives to create risk management solutions
for clients. Derivative financial instruments held in this respect at 31 December 2021 relate fo a
forward sale of €812 577 against US$ at a contractual rate of 1.1589 (2020: forward sale of £250,000
against the € at a contractual rate of 1.1048, as well as the forward purchase of €1,170,000 against
the US$ at a contractual rate of 1.2152 and the forward purchase of US$2,126,336 against the € at
an average contractual rate of 0.845, all of which mature within one year from the end of the reporting
period).

The foreign exchange risk from positions entered into with clients is managed as part of the Bank’s
overall foreign exchange risk management framework, mainly by ensuring that on a daily basis its
exposure to foreign currencies is within prescribed limits as approved by the Board. Net open
positions are typically brought te within the Board's appetite through the use of spot foreign exchange
trades, unless the use of forward contracts is deemed more practicable.

7. Loans and advances to banks

2021 2020

us$ Uss$
Repayable on call and at short notice 22,413,659 25,280,651
Term loans and advances 15,540,066 25,673,953
Allowances for expected credit losses {90,395) (94,275)

37,863,330 50,860,329

Loans and advances with a contractual maturity of three months or less included in the table above
within Term loans and advances amounting to US%$5,777,066 (2020: US$12,645,704) are included
in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows (Note 28).
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8.

Loans and advances to customers

Gross term loans and advances to customers
Allowances for expected credit losses

Net term loans and advances to customers

Credit loss allowances:
Allowances booked under Stage 1
Allowances booked under Stage 2
Allowances booked under Stage 3

2021 2020
us$ US$
62,646,787 65,477,030
(1,650,327)  (1,530,313)
60,996,460 63,946,717
2021 2020

Us$ uS$
827,507 717,643

- 158,787

822,730 653,883
1,650,327 1,530,313

The Bank enters into trade finance arrangements giving rise to lending and related facilities. In this
respect, loans and advances to customers amounting to US$14,915,796 (2020: US$11,210,660) are
subject to fixed interest rates ranging from 0% to 12% (2020: 0% to 12.00%) while US$41,352,427
(2020: US$54,266,370) are subject to variable interest rates ranging from 4.75% to 9.40% (2020:
4.23% to 11.25%). In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Bank had discounting arrangements
amounting to US$6,378,563 subject to fixed interest rates ranging between 5.00% and 6.00%. As at
31 December 2020, the Bank did not have any discounting arrangements.

The Bank holds varicus forms of collaterai to secure its loans and advances, including guarantees,
pledges in the form of a floating charge over inventories, the assignments of receivables, as well as

bills of exchange.
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9. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Furniture Computer Office
improvements and fittings hardware equipment Total
uss uss uUss$ uss Uss$

At 1 January 2020
Cost 73,043 217,789 357,483 60,320 708,635
Accumulated depreciation (67,877) (202,314} (217,618) (63,912)  (541,721)
Net book amount 5,166 15,475 139,865 6,408 166,914
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book amount 5,166 15,475 139,865 6,408 166,914
Additions - - 8,527 989 9,518
Depreciation charge (2,589) (8,872) (48,054) (4,382) (63,897)
Closing net book amount 2,577 6,603 100,338 3,015 112,533
At 31 December 2020
Cost 73,043 217,789 366,010 61,309 718,151
Accumulated depreciation (70,4686) {211,186} (265,672) (68,294) (605,618)
Net book amount 2,577 6,603 100,338 3,015 112,533
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 2577 6,603 100,338 3,015 112,533
Additions - - 16,128 - 16,128
Depreciation charge (2,050) (3,656) (48,047) (1,963) (55,7186)
Closing net book amount 527 2,947 68,419 1,052 72,945
At 31 December 2021
Cost 73,043 217,789 382,138 61,309 734,279
Accumulated depreciation (72,516) (214,842) (313,719) (60,257) (661,334)
Net book amount 527 2,947 68,419 1,052 72,945
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10. Intangible assets

Computer
software
uss$
At 1 January 2020
Cost 3,118,540
Accumulated amortisation (734,024)
Net book amount 2,384,516
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book amount 2,384,516
Additions 66,578
Amortisation charge (293,615)
Closing net book amount 2,157,479
At 31 December 2020
Cost 3,185,118
Accumulated amortisation (1,027,639)
Net book amount 2,157,479
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 2,157,479
Additions 134,393
Amortisation charge (313,154)
Closing net book amount 1,978,718
At 31 December 2021
Cost 3,319,511
Accumulated amortisation (1,340,793)
Net book amount 1,978,718
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11.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Bank leases office space, premises for a branch as well as vehicles for executive use. Lease
contracts are typically made for fixed periods with any extension or termination options exercisable
only by the Bank and not by the respective lessor.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use ('ROU’) asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Bank. The right-of-use asset us recognised at an
amount equal to the lease liability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use and
subsequently depreciated until the earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of
the lease term.

The Bank has also some other leases with contract terms shorter than one year and leases of low-
value items, for which the Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets.

Right-of-use asset 2021 2020
uss Uss
At 1 January 1,012,041 1,265,943
Depreciation (384,685) {253,902)
At 31 December 627,356 1,012,041

The lease liabilities were initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Bank’s incremental borrowing, which represents the rate at which the Bank
would have to pay to borrow funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

The movement in lease liabilities is analysed below:

Lease liahilities 2021 2020

uss uss
At 1 January 1,083,840 1,391,897
Interest expense on lease liability 16,501 20,399
Principal element of lease payments (408,634) (328,456)
At 31 December 691,707 1,083,840

Lease liabilities are split into maturity groupings as follows:

2021 2020

uss LSS

Current 244,523 254,285
Non-current 447,184 829,555
At 31 December 691,707 1,083,840

78




IIG BANK (MALTA) LTD
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2021

1.

12.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities - continued

The income statement reflects the following amounts relating to leases:

2021
uss$
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 384,685
Interest expense 16,501
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in 40,846

administrative expenses)

2020
Us$

253,902
20,399
36,699

The total cash payments for leases, including short-term leases, in 2021 was US$449,480 (2020:

US$348,855).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right fo offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal

authority.

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the liability method and are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The principal tax rate used is 35% (2020: 35%).

The movement in deferred tax assets during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
uss uUss$
At beginning of year 1,760,867 1,667,777
Recognised in profit or loss
- Deferred taxes on temporary differences arising on depreciation
of property, plant and equipment (104,403) 155,519
- Deferred taxes on temporary differences arising on expected
credit losses 43,541 206,133
- Deferred taxes on tax losses arising during the year - 37,239
- Utilisation of tax losses during the year (172,716) -
Recognised in other comprehensive income
- Deferred taxes on fair valuation of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
Net changes in fair vaiue 103,974 {241,290)
Amounts reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {2,799) 35,489
At end of year 1,628,464 1,760,867
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12,

13.

Deferred tax assets - continued

The balance at 31 December represents temporary differences attributable to:

At 31 December

Fair valuation of financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Expected credit losses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Tax losses carried forward

2021 2020
us$ USs$
(52,763)  (153,938)
618,224 574,683
125,002 229,405
938,001 1,110,717
1,628,464 1,760,867

The recognised deferred tax assets are expected to be recovered principally after more than twelve
months. The Bank has concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated

future taxable income.

Accrued income and other assets

Receivable from immediate parent company
Allowances for expected credit losses

Accrued interest income
Allowances for expected credit losses

Amounts attributable to the Depositer Compensation Scheme
Prepayments

Indirect taxation

Other receivables

2021 2020

Uss$ uUs$
3,328,080 3,328,080
(14,910) (12,404)
3,313,170 3,315,676
631,189 679,811
(872) (4,474)
630,317 875,337
617,905 592,181
465,254 413,007
64,616 65,584
12,129 35,082
5,103,391 5,097,767
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14.

15.

16.

17.

Share capital

2021 2020
Uss uss
Authorised
99,999,999 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of US$1 each 99,999,999 99,999,999
1 Ordinary ‘B’ Share of US$1 each 1 1

100,000,000 100,000,000

Issued and fully paid up
26,499,999 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of US$1 each 26,499,999 26,499,999
1 Ordinary ‘B’ Share of US$1 each 1 1

26,500,000 26,500,000

The Ordinary ‘B’ share, which is held by a director, does not carry any voting rights and is not entitled
to receive dividends.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve reflects the effects of the fair value measurement of financial instruments
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes. Any gains or
losses are not recognised in profit or loss until the asset has been sold.

Other reserve

The other reserve reflects the funds allocated for general banking risks.

Banking Rule BR09 ‘Measures addressing credit risks arising from the assessment of the quality of
asset portfolios of credit institutions authorised under the Banking Act 1994, issued by the MFSA,

requires banks in Malta to hold additional reserves for general banking risks in respect of non-
performing loans. This reserve is required to be funded from planned dividends.

Amounts owed to customers

2021 2020
uss$ Uss
Term and other deposits 78,664,141 83,337,598
Fiduciary deposits 31,394,207 39,950,115
Call accounts 38,328,806 30,551,180

148,387,154 153,839,193

Amounts owed to customers are classified as liabilities at amortised cost and are subject to fixed
interest rates except for call accounts, which are subject to re-pricing at the discretion of the Bank.

Balances consisting of cash collateral and notice account amounting to US$6,401,346 (2020:
US$4,850,234) and US510,053,109 (2020: US$10,379,970) respectively are included within ‘Term
and other deposits’ in the table above.

Fiduciary accounts, which are all of a fixed term nature, refer to placements made by other banks or
investment firms in their own name but on behalf of retail depositors.
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18.

19.

20.

Amounts owed to banks

2021 2020
uss$ uUss
Term loans and advances 17,000,000 11,000,000

Term loans and advances are subject to fixed interest rates and are secured by a pledge over
financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets
measured at amortised cost as disclosed in Note 5. These liahilities relate to the Bank's participation
in the European Central Bank's US Dollar operation

Other liabilities

2021 2020

uss us$

Accrued interest expense 391,981 353,756
Other payables and accrued expenses 435,529 403,971
827,510 757,727

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingencies related to legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2021 the Bank had cne (2020: one) legal proceeding, which has been
outstanding against it since 2018, arising in its normal course of business for the amount of €133,138,
equivalent to US$150,645 (2020: US$163,773) together with interest and costs. The Bank is
vigorously contesting the claim on the basis of legal advice obtained. The directors do not expect the
ultimate resolution of the proceedings referred to above fo have a significantly adverse effect on the
financial results and financial position of the Bank.

Commitments and other contingencies
At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had issued and confirmed letters of credit amounting to

US$6,244,104 (2020: US$8,148,863) and commitments not yet withdrawn amounting to
US$7,268,386 (2020: US$ 5,489,960).
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21.

22,

23.

Interest income

2021 2020
uUss uss$
On loans and advances to customers 4,333,066 4,405,745
On investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
orloss 1,409,143 892,757
On investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
- coupon interest 449,629 216,780
- nat amortisation of premiums and discounts (206,498) (142,280)
On investments measured at amortised cost:
- coupon interest 87,527 -
- net amortisation of premiums and discounts (26,684) -
On loans and advances to banks 11,604 31,270

6,057,787 5,404,272

Interest expense

2021 2020
US$ Uss
On balances with Central Bank of Malta 9,404 10,672
On amounts owed to customers 1,851,380 1,706,976
On amounts owed to banks 52,900 48,152
On lease liabilities 16,501 20,399

1,930,185 1,786,199

Fee and commission income and expense

{a) Fee and commission income

2021 2020

uss uss

Trade service-related fees 1,094,613 709,789
Transfer commissions 767,327 311,717
Account maintenance fees 78,598 24,127
Other fees 22,628 59,918

1,963,166 1,105,551

(b) Fee and commission expense

2021 2020

Uss uss

Correspondent bank charges 425,806 505,286
Portfolio management fees 169,930 110,035
Deposit introducer fees 102,472 74,636
Other fees 45,735 36,354
743,943 726,311
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24,

25. Change in expected credif losses and other credit impairment charges

26.

Net trading gains/{losses)

Foreign exchange differences
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange derivative contracts
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair

value through profit or loss

Change in expected credit losses in profit or loss on:
- Loans and advances to customers including accrued interest
and other assets

- Balances with central banks

- Loans and advances to banks

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Investments measured at amortised cost

Amounts written off

Recoveries

Administrative expenses

Staff cosis

- Directors’ remuneration

- Other staff salaries

- Social security costs

Directors’ fees

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of use asset
{Notes 9 and 11)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10)
Short term lease expenses

Legal and professional fees

Other administrative expenses

2021 2020
US$ Us$
(119,447)  (615,950)
91,305 348,780
199,930  (175,014)
171,788 (442,184)
2021 2020
us$ uss$
118,918
529,160
114 (270)
(3,880) 60,064
1,657 8,208
7,592 -
466,306 -
(297,055) -
293,652 597,162
2021 2020
us$ us$
567,783 448,803
1,907,966 1,730,057
92,021 85,326
109,220 101,480
440,401 317,799
313,154 293,615
40,846 36,699
175,734 173,961
946,914 989,055
4,594,039 4,176,775
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26. Administrative expenses - continued

Other administrative expenses mainly comprise contributions te the Depositor Compensation

Scheme, maintenance expenditure, marketing and other expense items which are incurred in the
course of the Bank’s operations.

Average number of persons employed by the Bank throughout the financial year:

2021 2020

- Managerial 5 5
- Clerical 29 26
34 31

Auditor's remuneration

Fees charged by the auditor and affiliated entities for services rendered to the Bank during the
financial year relate to the following:

2021 2020

Uss$ us$

Annual statutory audit 77,000 73,200
Tax compliance and advisory services 8,700 9,000
Other non-audit services 73,600 61,500
160,300 143,700

27. Tax (expense)fincome

2021 2020
Us$ Us$

Deferred tax {expense)/income (Note 12) (233,578) 308,891
(233,578) 398,891

The tax on the Bank’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
effective tax rate applicable to the Bank as follows:

2021 2020

us$ us$

Profit/{loss) before tax 638,893 (1,117,410)

Tax on profit/(loss) at 35% 223,613 (391,094)
Tax effect of:

Disallowable expenses 9,965 22,592

Unrecognised deferred tax in prior year - (30,389)

233,578 (398,881)
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28,

29,

30,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
balances with contractual maturities of not more than three months and which form an integral part

of the Bank’s cash management:

2021 2020

Us$ uss$

Cash in hand (Note 4) 3,532 5,391
Cash with Central Bank of Malta {Note 4) 12,758,626 11,548,043
lLoans and advances to banks (Note 7) 28,190,725 37,926,355
40,952,883 49,479,789

Related party transactions

IIG Malta Ltd is the Bank's immediate parent (refer to Note 31). This immediate parent is wholly
owned by |G Trade Opportunities Fund N.V. (refer io Note 31). All entities which were ultimately
controlled by I'G Trade Opportunities Fund N.V. and managed by the Fund's Asset Manager, |IG
Trade Finance LLC, were considered related parties.

On 3 September 2019, [IG Trade Opportunities Fund N.V. was put into administration by the Curacao
Courts, and control was passed from G Trade Opportunities Fund NV asset managers to a Trustee,
Ms. Marta Valerie Petronila. I1G Trade Finance LLC and other related entities have since not been
considered as related parties.

Key management personnel compensation, consisting of directors’ remuneration, has been
disclosed in Note 26.

Events after the reporting date

Subsequent to the reporting date, an armed conflict between Russia and Ukraine commenced as a
result of which economic sanctions were imposed by the EU, the US and other countries on Russia
and Belarus as well as a number of Russian and Belarussian individuals. The conflict and related
sanctions are expected to contribute to global economic dislocation, including potentially, disruption
of energy supplies, higher inflation and additional credit and market risk.

Upon the emergence of this conflict, the Bank performed an initial assessment of the effects the
current situation may have on its financial position and ongoing financial performance, and as of the
date that these financial statements were authorised for issue, the directors have not identified a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The assessment considered the impact that the conflict could have on the valuation of the Bank’s
investments as a result of credit and market risk, the effect of the conflict on the Bank’s processes
as well as the effect on borrowers’ business environment and supply chains, and as a result on the
creditworthiness of its borrowers.

Foliowing an in-depth analysis of its lending customers, the Bank is not expecting delays in
repayments from increased credit risk, other than in the case of 1 borrower whose exposure amounts
to US$3,500,000, that has been directly affected by the current situation, and that has requested an
extension in its repayment terms. The Bank has accordingly granted forbearance measures to
support this borrower which triggered a staging classification to Stage 2. Albeit the Bank deems the
impact from such forbearance measures to be immaterial.
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30.

3.

Events after the reporting date - continued

On the other hand, as at the end of March 2022, the Bank recognised a fair value loss in respect of
its financial investments measured at fair value through profit or loss of approximately US$1,492,000,
attributable mainly to four debt securities issued by Russian and Ukrainian corporates

From an operational perspective, the Bank ensures compliance with any applicable sanctions.
Management continues to moniter the situation and any potential effects on its business, customers
and operations very closely.

Based on this assessment and the likely future impact of the conflict on the Bank, as of the date that
these financial statements were authorised for issue, the directors have not identified a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. As
a result, the Bank continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its Financial Statements.

Statutory information
I1G Bank (Malta) Ltd is a limited liability company and is incorporated in Malta.

The immediate parent company of [IG Bank (Malta) Ltd is IIG Malta Ltd, a company registered in
Malta that owns all the shares of I|G Bank (Malta) Ltd with the exception of one share. lts registered
address is Level 20, Portomaso Business Tower, Portomaso, St Julian’s, Malta.

[IG Bank (Malta) Ltd is ultimately owned by iIG Trade Opportunities Fund N.V., a fund registered in
Curacao, the Kingdom of the Netherlands, with its registered office at ANT Management (Curacao)
N.V., Kaya W.F.G. (Jombi} Mensing 36, Willemstad Curacac. On 3rd September 2019, IIG Trade
Opportunities Fund N.V. was put info administration by the Curacao Courts, and control passed to a
Trustee, Ms. Maria Valerie Petronila.
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1.1

1.2

Risk management
Overview of risk disclosures

The Additional Regulatory Disclosures (‘{ARDs’) were prepared by the Bank in accordance with the
Pillar 3 quantitative and qualitative disclosure requirements as governed by Banking Rule 07
{'BR/O7’). Publication of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of Credit [nstitutions
authorised under the Banking Act, 1994, issued by the Malta Financial Services Authority. These
disclosures are based on the disclosure requirements of Directive 2013/36/EU (Capital
Requirements Directive) and EU Regulation No. 575/2013 {Capital Requirements Regulation) of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013. These ARDs are published on an annual
basis as part of the Annual Report of the Bank and seek to increase public disclosure relative o a
Bank’s capital structure and adequacy as well as its risk management policies and practices.

In line with the banking regulatory requirements, these ARDs are not subject to an external audit,
except to the extent that any disclosures are equivalent to those made in the Financial Statements
which are prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS’) as adopted by the EU. Through internal verification procedures the Bank ensures
that these disclosures are presented fairly.

Risk management framework

The Bank’s business model throughout the years has been that of developing a stable deposit base
and investing its funds principally in trade finance assets, with excess liquidity invested in a portfolio
of select debt securities. The Bank is committed to creating lasting value for shareholders by focusing
on customer-driven business and by employing specialised staff that work with clients to find
solutions. In keeping with this mission, the Bank's strategy targets sustainable growth and a low risk
profile. In this respect, the Bank's return on assets calculated as its net loss, expressed as a
percentage of average total assets, for the reporting period ended 31 December 2021 is
0.21%.

The management team selects the Bank’s customers and the projects it finances with prudence and
caution. The Bank is especially conscious of the risks involved in trade finance transactions, not only
as a result of its exposure to the arising credit risk involved but also to the operational risk intrinsic
within the business. Therefore, it strives to minimise its exposure to operational risk by taking on
transactions only when it knows how to manage the resulting risk. This culture is fostered across the
entire Bank.

The Bank takes on risk with the aim of generating profits and therefore considers risk management
a core competency that helps produce higher returns for its various stakeholders. The Bank bases
its risk management objectives and policies on international guidelines, such as the Basel Ill Accord,
corresponding Directives and Regulations of the European Union, including technical standards, as
well as contemporary international banking practices. In this respect, the Board of Directors deems
the risk management framework adopted by the Bank to be adequate and hence gives assurance to
the Bank’s stakeholders that the risk management systems adopted by the Bank are appropriate in
relation to the Bank’s risk profile and strategy.
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1. Risk management - continued
1.2 Risk management framework - continued
The main categories of risk to which the Bank is exposed to are:

- Credit risk: Credit risk stems from the loss of equity and profit as a result of the possible non-
prompt repayment or non-payment of existing and contingent obligations by the Bank's
counterparties. Therefore, this represents the risk that the deterioration in the financial condition
of a borrower will cause the asset value to decrease or be extinguished. Country risk and
settlement risk are included in this category. Country risk refers to the risk of losses arising from
economic or political changes that affect the country in which the asset is originated. Settlement
risk refers to the risk of losses through failure of the counterparty to seftle outstanding dues on
the seitlement date owing to bankrupicy or other causes.

- Market risk: Risk of losses arising from unfavourable changes in the level and volatility of interest
rates, foreign exchange rates or investment prices.

- Liquidity risk: Liquidity risk may be divided into two sub-categoeries:

- Market (product) liquidity risk: risk of losses arising from difficulty in accessing a product or
market at the required time, price and volume.

- Funding liquidity risk: risk of losses arising from a timing mismatch between investing,
placements and fund raising activities resulting in obligations missing the settlement date or
satisfied at higher than normal rates.

- Operational risk: Risk of damage resulting from the lack of skilful management or good
governance within the Bank and the inadequacy of proper control, which might involve internal
operations, personnel, system or external occurrences that in turn affect the income and capital
funds of financial institutions. The Bank has adopted an operational risk management
framework and procedures, which provide for the identification, assessment, management,
monitoring and reporting of the Bank’s operationai risks.

The Bank aims fo manage these risks by applying methods that meet best practice and considers it
important to have a clear distribution of responsibilities for risk management across the Bank, from
the Beard of Directors, and the Audit Committee, which performs the functions of the Risk Committee,
to executive management and internal audit.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's
risk management framework through the development and monitoring of compliance with the Bank’s
risk management policies. The aim of the risk management framework is to support the Bank in
achieving its goals and objectives and ensure that the risks are commensurate with the rewards.

The Board establishes the risk appetite of the Bank which is the maximum risk that the Bank is willing
to assume to meet business targets. The risk appefite is set in a process based on a thorough
analysis of its current risk profile. The Bank identifies a number of key risk components and for each,
determines a target that represents the Bank’s perception of the component in question. The Bank's
risk appetite is a key tool to ensure coherence between the Bank's strategic considerations regarding
risk-taking and day-to-day decisions.
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2.1

Risk management - continued
1.2 Risk management framework - continued

The Audit Committee is appointed to oversee the formulation of the Bank’s overall risk management
policy, to review risk measurement and monitoring mechanisms within the Bank and to monitor the
effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management practices, and thus is responsible for performing the
roles of a Risk Comimittee. In the course of managing this framework the Audit Committee focuses
on four key infrastructure components of effective risk management programmes with specific control
activities:

Active Executive Management oversight;

Adequate detailed policies, procedures and discretionary limits;

Adequate risk-measurement, monitoring and management information systems; and
Comprehensive automated and manual internal controls.

The Audit Committee convened 3 times during the period under review.

Authority to operate the Bank is delegated to the Executive Team within the limits set by the Board,
The Executive Team is made up of the Bank's Chief Officers, namely the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Finance Officer, the Chief Qperations Officer, and the Chief Risk Officer, and is led
by the Chief Executive Officer. It is responsible for the Bank's day-to-day operations and is involved
in taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The Bank has an
appropriate organisational structure for planning, executing, controlling and -monitoring business
operations in order to achieve the Bank's objectives.

The Executive Team aims to manage all major types of risk by applying methods that meet best
practice. One of the main tasks of the Bank’s Executive Team, and more specifically, the Chief Risk
Officer's task, is to set the framework for this area of entity wide risk management. The core functions
of the Bank’s risk management processes are to identify all key risks for the Bank, measure these
risks, manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations.

The Bank’s independent Internal Audit function reviews the adequacy and proper operation of
internal controls in individual areas of operation, and performs ad-hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures. The functicn and reports its findings to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk
Introduction to credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank's clients or market
counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit exposures arise principally
through the Bank’s participation in trade financing fransactions. The Bank's business activities during
the financial period under review principally consisted of Bank's direct financing of international trade
and discounting of receivables.

Credit risk constitutes the Bank’s largest risk in view of its lending activities and therefore the Bank
is fully aware of the connotations of such risk and places great importance on its effective
management. The Bank’s portfolio of loans and advances to customers is monitored on an ongoing
basis and the relevant management bodies, including the Board of directors and the Executive
Committee, are kept informed on an ongeing basis of developments in the credit portfolio, non-
performing loans and other relevant information,
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2.2

Credit risk - continued
Credit risk management

The granting of a credit facility is based on the Bank’s insight into the customer’s financial position,
which is reviewed regularly to assess whether the basis for the granting of credit has changed.
Furthermore, the customer must be able to demonstrate, in all probability, the ability to repay the
debt.

In order to measure its principal risk exposures, the Bank compiles due diligence reports and in most
circumstances refers to external reviews of the primary barrowers and their respective assignees of
export receivables carried out by agencies such as Dun and Bradstreet or their equivalents.

The Bank’s Credit function is responsible for undertaking and managing credit risk with respect to
the Bank’s lending activities, which covers all the stages within the lending cycle, from credit proposal
to credit recovery procedures. The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk
arising from loans and advances wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual customers,
to industry sectors and to geographical locations. Hence, the Bank sfructures the levels of credit risk
it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk in relation to one borrower, or groups of
borrowers, to industry segments and to different countries. Such risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis and subject to frequent review, as considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by
industry sector and country are approved by the Board of Directors. Limits to individual borrowers
are approved by the Executive Committee and ratified by the Board. Actual exposures against limits
are monitored at end of day on a daily basis and on a real time basis too. As highlighted previously,
the Bank's reporting framework with respect to lending credit risk is comprehensive with regular
reporting by the Credit function to the Board and the Executive Committee on adherence to limits,
activity levels, performance measures and specific credit risk events.

In order to minimise the credit risk undertaken in examining a counterparty's creditworthiness,
country risk, quantitative and qualitative characteristics, as well as the industry sector in which the
counterparty operates are considered. The Bank has also set limits of authority and has segregation
of duties in place so as to maintain impartiality and independence during the approval process and
to control new and existing credit facilities. Credit review procedures are designed to identify at an
early stage exposures which require more detailed monitoring and review. The Bank'’s principal credit
risk exposures reflecting the maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements in accordance with the regulatory information submitted to the MFSA are as follows:

2021 2021

Average Year end

value exposure value

uss uss

Central governments or central banks 48,424,180 50,016,123
Institutions 56,828,997 47,626,563
Corporates 81,338,755 86,929,205
Exposures in default 3,064,721 3,543,384
Covered bonds 363,552 348,731
Exposures in the form of units or shares in ClUs 9,735,652 8,726,924
Other items 6,856,654 5,101,836

206,612,511

202,292,766
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2.3

Credit risk - continued

2.2 Credit risk management - continued

The exposures set out in the preceding table are based on the sum of on-balance sheet exposures
and off-balance sheet exposures adjusted for the credit conversion factors stipulated within
Article 111(1) of the CRR.

Credit risk exposures analysed by residual maturity

Within
three
Within months but Within one
one over one year but over More than No
month month three months one year  maturity Total
US$ us$ us$ uss Us$ uss$
As at 31 December 2021
Central governments or
central banks 13,537,001 - - 36,479,122 - 50,016,123
Institutions 28,250,286 245,280 9,367,764 9,763,233 - 47,626,563
Corporates 38,810,212 18,231,520 2,267,110 27,520,363 - 86,929,205
Exposures in default - - - 3,543,384 - 3,543,384
Covered bonds - - - 348,731 - 348,731
Exposures in the form of
units or shares in ClUs - - - - 8,726,924 8,726,924
Other items - - - - 5,101,836 5,101,836
Total 80,697,499 18,476,800 11,634,874 77,654,833 13,828,760 202,292,766

Concentration risk

Concentration risk arises as a result of the concentration of exposures within the same category,
whether it is geographical location, industry sector or counterparty type. These risks are managed
through adherence to Board approved lending criteria.

The Bank is exposed fo a significant concentration of credit risk with respect to its loans and
advances to customers since a significant proportion of the total loans and advances amounting to
US$62,646,786 are due from a limited number of customers. As at 31 December 2021, loans and
advances to customers amounting to US$54,683,423 were deemed to be large exposures for
regulatory reporting purposes, prior to any eligible exemptions, in accordance with the requirements
the CRR.
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Credit risk - continued
2.3 Concentration risk - continued

Exposures analysed by location/geographical region

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by location. The geographical concentration of the
Bank's exposure classes as at the end of the reporting period is analysed in the following table. For
the purposes of this table, the Bank has allocated exposures classes to regions based on the country

of domicile of the counterparties or customers.

Latin Other EU Rest of
As at 31 December 2021 America Malta countries world Total
Uss$ uss Us$ uss Us$
Central governments or central banks - 47,548,915 2,350,437 116,771 50,016,123
Institutions 6,825,015 1,473,620 39,327,928 47,626,563
Corporates 8,757,503 368,381 7,618,515 70,184,805 86,929,205
Exposures in default - 2,070,994 - - 1,472,390 3,543,384
Covered bonds - - 348,731 - 348,731
Exposure:s in the form of units or - 8,726,924 ) ) 8,726,924
shares in ClUs
Other items - 5,101,836 - - 5,101,836
Total 10,828,497 68,571,071 11,791,304 111,101,894 202,292,766
Exposures analysed by industry
The following is an analysis of the industry concentrations relating to the Bank's exposures:
Covered
bonds &
Exposures in
Central Multilateral the form of
governments developments units or
or central banks & Exposures shares in
banks Institutions Corporates In default ClUs Other items Total
us$ us$ Us$ us$ uss uss uss
G-overn.ment _ 50,016,123 - - - - - 50,016,123
Financial services - 47,626,563 - 9,075,655 - 58,702,218
Wholesale trade of
comrnodity
preducts - - 45,643,636 3,543,384 49,186,919
Manufactured /
processed
commodity
products - - - - - - -
Mining - - 4,823,198 - - - 4823198
Transport . _ - - - - -
Other B B _ ~ _ R -
Total 50,016,123 47,626,563 86,929,205 3,543,384 9,075,655 5,101,836 202,292,766
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2.4

Credit risk - continued
2.3 Concentration risk - continued
Counterparty banks’ risk

The Bank runs the risk of loss of funds due to the possible delay in the repayment of existing and
future obligations by counterparty banks. Within its daily operations the Bank transacts with banks
and other financial institutions which are pre-approved and subject to a limits framework. In the
normal course of business, the Bank places deposits and enters into foreign exchange derivative
contracts with high credit quality banks and financial institutions. By conducting these transactions
the Bank is running the risk of losing funds due to the possible delays in the repayment to the Bank
of the existing and future obligations of the counterparty banks. The positions are checked against
the limits on a daily basis at end of day and on a real time basis.

Country risk

The Bank runs the risk of loss of funds due to the possible political, economic and other events in a
particular country where funds have been placed or invested with several counterparties.
Countries are assessed according to their size, economic data and prospects and their credit ratings
from international rating agencies. Existing country credit risk exposures are monitored and reviewed
pericdically.

Use of External Credit Assessment Institutions

The Bank uses an External Credit Assessment Institution (‘ECAI') in calculating its risk-weighted
exposure amounts for Central governments or central banks, Public sector entities, Institutions and
Corporates for which a credit assessment is available. The credit quality of such exposures is
determined by reference to credit ratings applicable to issuers published by Fitch Ratings. The Bank
maps Fitch's ratings to the credit quality steps prescribed in the CRR as required by Impfementing
Technical Standard on the credit quality steps for ECAls credit assessments’,

The following table represents the exposure values for which an ECA is used:

Central
Credit governments Institutions
quality or central & Covered
At 31 December 2021 step banks  Corporates bonds Total
uss Us$ us$ uUss
AAA to AA- 1 - 15.419.264 348,731 15,767,995
A+to A- 2 47,548,915 5,694,780 - 53,243,695
BBB+ to BBB- 3 2,350,437 12,752,504 - 15,102,941
BB+ to BB- 4 118,771 3,597,252 - 3,714,023
B+ to B- 5 - 18,041,212 - 19,041,212
CCC+ and below 6 - 7,748,287 - 7,748,287
Total 50,016,123 64,253,299 348,731 114,618,153
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Credit risk - continued
2.5 Credit quality of the Bank’s financial assets
Loans and advances to cusfomers

The credit function monitors loans and advances to customers on an individual basis throughout the
different stages of the cycle, from approval upon origination until maturity. As highlighted previously,
the Bank focuses on the compilation, together with ongoing and event-driven updating of due
diligence analyses taking cognisance of actual account developments, repayment history, ability to
meet commitments and collateral measurement. Loans and advances to customers are primarily
secured via an assignment of export receivables of the borrower and through a cross-collateral in
the form of a floating charge over assets.

With respect to loans and advances to customers, the Bank reviews and grades advances into two
main categories: 'Performing’ and ‘Non-performing’. ‘Performing’ customers represent those
customers with exposures which are less than 90 days past due, whilst ‘Non-performing’ customers
are those customers with exposures which are past due by 90 days or more. The 'Performing’
category is further sub-divided into three sub-categories, namely ‘Regular, ‘Watch' and
‘Substandard’, showing a worsening of the customer's financial status from ‘Regular’ (less than 30
days past due) to ‘Substandard’' {more than 60 days past due but less than 90 days past due). The
Non-performing category is also referred to as the ‘Doubtful’ category.

Loans are considered past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually
due. Past due but not impaired loans comprise loans and advances where contractual interest or
principal payments are past due, but the Bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the
basis of the level of security available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Bank.

Impaired loans and advances to customers represent those advances which are either more than 90
days past due, or for which the Bank has determined that it is probable that it will be unable fo collect
all principal and interest due as prescribed within the contractual terms of the loans and advances
agreemeni(s).

The credit quality of the Bank's loans and advances to customers (which are classified within the
Corporates exposure class) is presented in the table below.

As at 31 December 2021 Us$
Performing exposures 59,234,769
Past due exposures -
Impaired exposures 3,543,107
Total loans and advances to customers 62,777,875

The Bank’s past due and impaired exposures are mainly concentrated in Latin America and Other
EU countries, as shown in the geographical distribution presented in section 2.3 above. The following
table provides a reconciliation of the Bank's specific credit risk adjustments.

Us$
At 1 January 2021 3,657,309
Amounts written off (466,306)
Increases during the period 479,629
Repayments during the year {131,243)
At 31 December 2021 3,539,389
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Credit risk - continued
2.5 Credit quality of the Bank’s financial assets - continued

Financial invesiments

As part of its treasury management activities the Bank invests in debt instruments issued by local
government as well as a portfolio of debt securities issued by high quality foreign corporates and
institutions. All such instruments are listed and accordingly the quality of these assets is monitored
through the use of external ratings (see note 2.4 above). These transactions are also monitored
through the practical use of exposure limits. At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had no past
due or impaired financial assets within this category.

Liquidity in excess of operational requirements is also placed in a money market fund that mainly
seeks to invest in term deposits with Prime European Banks and Malta Government Treasury bills.

Credit risk mitigation techniques

The Bank’s approach when granting credit facilities is based on the customer’s capacity to repay
rather than placing primary reliance on credit risk mitigants. Notwithstanding, as part of the Bank’s
credit risk mitigation techniques, the Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers,
the nature and level of which generally depends on the amount of the exposure, the type of facility
provided, the term of the facility and the level of credit risk involved. Collateral utilised to secure loans
and advances include guarantees, pledges in the form of a floating charge over inventories, the
assignments of receivables, as well as bills of exchange.

Exposure
value after
At 31 December 2021 Cash or credit risk
Total exposure quasi cash mitigants
Us$ uUs$ uss
Corporates 65,720,791 3,602,177 62,118,614

Counterparty credit risk

Counterparty credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a transaction could default before
the final settlement of the transaction’s cash flows. The Bank is primarily exposed to counterparty
credit risk through derivative exposures, which mainly relate to currency swaps.

Counterparty credit risk in respect of currency swaps is subject to approval from the Bank’s Executive
Committee, in its function as the ALCO. Entry into derivative exposures will be subject to prior
implementation of appropriate settlement risk and risk management infrastructure pursuant to a
sighed ISDA agreement. Exposure to derivative counterparties and the related credit risk is mitigated
through the use of netting and collateralisation agreements.

In order to determine the potential future exposure, the notional amounts or underlying values, as
applicable, are multiplied by the percentages stipulated in Table 1 of Article 274(2)(c) of the CRR.
Given that all of the Bank's derivative exposures relate to foreign exchange contracts with residual
maturities of less than one year, the Bank applies a 1% rate on the notional amounts of the derivative
exposures. In this respect, the Bank's risk weighted exposure as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
US$126,298 requiring minimum regulatory capital of US$10,104.
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4.1

Market risk

Market risk for the Bank consists of the following elements:

- Interest rate risk, which is the risk of losses because of changes in interest rates; and

- Foreign exchange risk, which is the risk of losses on the Bank's positions in foreign currency
because of changes in exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Bank's exposure to interest rate risk is analysed in the table below:

Floating rates Fixed rates Total
Uss$ uss uss

At 31 December 2021
Financial assets 59,607,857 123,669,159 183,277,016
Financial liabilities 38,330,265 127,056,889 165,387,154
Net exposure 21,277,592 (3,387,730) 17,889,862

The Bank's Executive Team is responsible for the management of interest rate risk and for actively
monitoring the interest rate risk measures used by the Bank, by reporting on a regular basis to the
Board. Responsibility for day-to-day interest rate risk management is allocated to the Treasury
function. The Bank’s risk oversight function provides oversight with respect to the interest rate risk
management process, by ensuring its design is appropriate and functioning properly.

Financial instruments issued at fixed rates potentially expose the Bank to fair value interest rate risk.
Loans and advances to customers and to banks, and amounts owed to customers and banks are
measured at amortised cost and are therefore not subject to fair value interast rate risk.

The Bank's instruments that are fair valued comprise the Bank’s investments in a money market fund
which are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss and debt securities measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income. A significant proportion of the Bank's investments in
debt securities are subject to fixed interest rates. The risk of losses arising from fair value interest
rate risk in this respect is principally managed by investing in debt securities issued by the
Government of Malta and in securities issued by high quality foreign corporates. The Bank manages
this risk by utilising sensitivity analysis based on modified duration, which measures the potential loss
in market value arising from a 100 basis-point upward paralle! shift in yields. The estimated impact
of an immediate 100 basis point increase in yields as at 31 December 2021 on the fair valuation of
its investments carried at fair value (debt securities and units in the money market fund) amounts to
U8%193,826. These investments are mainly denominated in US Dollar.

The Bank is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk principally in respect of certain financial
instruments which were subject to floating interest rates. Financial assets and liabilities issued at
variable rates expose the Bank to cash flow interest rate risk. Cashflow interest raie risk is measured
and monitored by reference to a sensitivity analysis in respect of interest rate changes in relation to
the Bank’s net floating rate assets or liabilities.

10
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Market risk - continued

4.1 Interest rate risk - continued

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had increased by 1% (assuming a parallel shift of
100 basis points in yields) with all other variables held constant, in particular foreign currency rates,
the post-tax result for the year would increase by US$212,776.

The following table summarises the Bank’s exposures to interest rate risk. It includes the entity's
financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by re-pricing dates, taking cognisance of the
instruments’ interest rate terms. For the entity’s interest bearing assets and liabilities that are mainly
subject to fixed interest rates, the re-pricing periods are generally equivalent to the remaining period

to maturity.

Within
three Within one
Within months but year but
one over one over three More than
month month months ohe year Total
uss$ uss Uss uss uss
As at 31 December 2021
Financial assets 89,486,214 89,486,214 89,486,214 89,486,214 89,486,214
Financial liabilities 84,608,980 84,608,980 84,608,980 84,608,980 84,608,980
Interest rate gap 5177,234 5177,234 5,177,234 5,177,234
Cumulative gap 5,177,234 6,690,403 (8,437,188) 19,528,071

11
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Market risk - continued
Currency risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange
rates on its financial position and cash flows. Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings and value
caused by a change in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises when financial assets
or liabilities are denominated in currencies which are different from the Bank's functional currency.

The Bank funds its growth through the acceptance of deposits predominantly denominated in euro
and through the credit operations (Refinancing Operations) of the Central Bank of Malta within the
Eurosystem’s credit operations framework.

The Bank manages its currency risk on an ongoing basis by ensuring that foreign currency liabilities
are utilised to fund assets denominated in the same foreign currency thereby matching asset and
liability positions as much as is practicable. When it is not possible to match the asset and liability
currency positions, the Bank normally hedges its open foreign exchange exposures arising from
customer deposits by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts or currency swaps with terms
which match those of the hedged items, with a view to reducing exposures within a limit management
framework.

The Bank's Treasury function is responsible for the effective management of foreign exchange risks,
ensuring exposures to foreign currencies are maintained within the limits set by the Bank's Board.,
The Board sets these limits on the level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for both overnight
and intra-day positions, which are actively monitored and reported on a regular basis. The Bank’s
risk oversight function provides oversight with respect to the foreign exchange risk management
process, by ensuring its design is appropriate and functioning properly.

The following table summarises the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31
December. Included in the table are the Bank’s financial instruments at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

GBP Euro Total
uss uss uss uss

As at 31 December 2021
Financial assets 89,671,187 4,236,405 96,237,515 190,145,107
Financial liabilities 60,183,578 5,696,871 101,025,922 166,906,371

Net on balance sheet position 29,487,609 (1,460,466) (4,788,407) 23,238,736

Off-balance sheet net notional
Position 1,448,455 5,303,818

Net currency exposure {12,011) 515,411
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Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The
consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments.

The Bank manages this risk by maintaining a strong base of shareholders’ capital considering the
initial stages of its operations. The Bank manages its asset base with liquidity in mind, and monitors
future cash flows and changes in available liquidity on a regular basis.

The Bank holds a diversified portfolio of cash and high-quality highly-liquid securities to support
payment obligations and contingent funding in a stressed market environment. The Bank's assets
held for managing liquidity risk comprise:

» short term placements with other banks;

» investments in money market funds; and

* unencumbered Government bonds amounting to US$8,350,819 that are readily acceptable for
repurchase agreements with central banks.

Liquidity is managed by the Bank's treasury function and the Bank's liquidity management process,
includes:

+ day to day funding managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can
be met including plans for replenishment of funds as they mature;

« maintaining a portfolic of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

¢ monitoring the liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and

« managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Moreover, sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the treasury function to maintain a wide
diversification by provider, product and term. Monitoring takes the form of cash flow projections for
the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management.

In this light, reporting of measures of liquidity risk and liquidity ratios compared to prescribed internal
limits to the Board and Executive Team is effected on a regular basis. The Bank’s risk oversight
function provides oversight with respect to the liquidity risk management process, by ensuring its
design is appropriate and functicning properly.

13
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Liquidity risk - continued
Analysis by residual maturity

The following table discloses financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period by
remaining period to maturity.

Within
three Within one
Within  months but year but
one over one over three  More than No
month month Months one year  maturity Total
Us$ uss$ uUss$ uss uUss uss$
As at 31 December
2021
Financial assets 80,804,438 18,491,568 13,289,294 24298,308 51,505,808 188,389,416
Financial liabilities 84,345,852 17,331,873 28,107,866 37,216,379 - 167,001,970
Maturity gap (3,541,414) (1,159,695) (14,818,572) (12,918,071)
Cumulative gap (3,541,414) (2,381,719) (17,200,291) (30,118,362)

The following table analyses the Bank’s principal undiscounted cash flows payable under non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Within
three Within
months one year

Within but butover More
one overone three than one Carrying
month month  months year Total amount
Uss$ uss us$ uss$ Uss Us$
As at 31 December 2021
Financial liabilities 84,653,976 17,280,214 28,107,807 38,865,097 168,907,094 166,675,243
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. The Bank’s Board of directors is primarily
responsible for the development and implementation of policies and procedures fo ensure that
operational risks are managed effectively. The Bank mitigates the possibility of impact risk events
through the implementation of a business continuity plan, which encompasses risk mitigation
achieved through back-up information security infrastructures, back-up disaster recovery sites and
insurance covers over particular business risks. Such systems enable the Bank to operate on an
ongoing basis and limit losses in the event of severe business disruption.

The Bank’s management of operational risk relies on a framework of policies and procedures
implemented across the Bank’s operational functions through transaction processing and business
execution. The implementation of these policies and procedures is overseen by the Bank's risk
oversight function. Regular reporting of operational risk events to the Board of Directors is carried
when required.

The Bank currently uses the Basic Indicator Approach to assess the operational risk capital
requirements and accordingly allocates 15% of average gross income for a three year period in
accordance with regulatory requirements. The operational risk regulatory capital requirement as at
December 2021 amounted to US$782,191,

Capital risk management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ as
disclosed in the statement of financial position, are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set out in the CRD IV and the CRR;

- to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored on an ongoing basis by the Bank’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee,
European Union Regulations and Directives, as implemented by the MFSA for supervisory purposes.
The Bank’s capital risk management is based on the regulatory requirements established within the
CRR and by local regulations which are modelled on the requisites of the CRD rules.

The Bank’s Executive team is primarily responsible for the Bank's capital risk management process.
Capital adequacy ratios together with the level and quality of own funds are reported on a regular
basis to the Board of Directors by the Finance function.

The Bank is required to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets (“Capital
requirements ratio") above the prescribed minimum level of 8%.
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7.1

Capital risk management - continued

The minimum capital requirements are calculated for credit, market and operational risks. During the
year, the Bank utilised the Standardised Approach for credit risk, the Basic Indicator Approach for
operational risk and the Basic Method for foreign exchange risk in order to calculate the Pillar 1
minimum capital requirements. For credit risk, under the standardised approach risk weights are
determined according to credit ratings provided by internationally recognised credit agencies such
as Fitch or their equivalents and by using the applicable regulatory risk weights for unrated
exposures. The Basic Indicator Approach requires that the Bank allocates capital for operational risk
by taking 15% of the average gross income, while the Basic Method requires the Bank to allocate
8% of its overall net foreign exchange position to calculate the capital requirement for foreign
exchange risk.

Own funds

The level of Own funds represents the Bank's available capital and reserves for the purposes of
assessing capital adequacy from a regulatory perspective. The total capital ratio is a measure of the
long-term financial strength of a bank, usually expressed as a ratio of its own funds or capital to the
measure of the Bank’s assets. The Bank has processes to ensure that the minimum regulatory
requirements in relation to own funds are met at all times, through the assessment of its capital
resources and requirements. During the financial period ended 31 December 2020, the Bank has
complied with all the externally imposed capital requirements to which it was subject.

In July 2013, the European Banking Authority {'EBA’) issued its final draft Implementing Technical
Standards ('ITS") on own funds disclosures. The disclosure requirements of these technical
standards have been integrated within the Bank's disclosures set out below.

For regulatory purposes, the Bank’s capital base is divided into Common Equity Tier 1 (‘CET1")
capital and Tier 2 capital. The Bank's CET1 capital includes ordinary share capital, retained earnings,
reserve for general banking risks and other regulatory adjustments relating to items that are included
in equity but treated differently for capital adequacy purposes, including deductions to amounts
pledged in favour of the Depositor Compensation Scheme and any unrealised gains or losses in the
fair valuation of available-for-sale financial assets, net of deferred taxation.

The Bank’s Tier 2 capital consists of an investment revaluation reserve, which represents unrealised
gains in the fair valuation of available-for-sale financial assets, net of deferred taxation.

{a) Share capital

The Bank’s share capital as at 31 December is analysed as follows:

2021 2020
No. of
shares uss$
Authorised

99,999,999 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of US$1 each 99,999,999 89,999,999
1 Ordinary ‘B’ share of US$1 each 1 1
100,000,000 100,000,000

Issued and fully paid up
26,499,999 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of US$1 each 26,499,999 26,499,999
1 Ordinary ‘B’ share of US$1 each 1 1
26,500,000 26,500,000
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Capital risk management - continued
7.1 Own funds - continued

The holders of Ordinary ‘A’ shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Bank. All shares rank equally with regard
to the Bank's residual assets.

The Ordinary ‘B’ share, which is held by a director, does not carry any voting rights and is not entitled
to receive dividends.

(b) Retained earnings
The retained earnings represent earnings not paid out as dividends.

Retained earnings form part of Own funds only if those profits have been verified by the Bank's
independent external auditor. The Bank has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the competent
authority that any foreseeable charge or dividend has been deducted from the amount of those
profits.

Retained earnings include an amount of US$617,905, pledged in favour of the Depositor
Compensation Scheme as at 31 December 2021, that are not available to the Bank for unrestricted
and immediate use to cover risk of losses as soon as they occur. The Depositor Compensation
Scheme Reserve is excluded for the purposes of the Own Funds calculation.

{c) Fair value reserve

This represents the cumulative net change in fair values of available-for-sale assets held by the Bank,
net of related deferred tax effects,
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Capital risk management - continued

7.1 Own funds - continued

As described in the CRR published by the European Commission, banks are required to present a
transitional disclosure template during the phasing in of regulatory adjustments from 1 January 2014

to 31 December 2021. The transitional disclosure template is set out below.

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1} capital

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital: instruments and reserves
Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves)

IFRS 9 transitional adjustment

CET1 capital before regulatory adjustments

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital: reguiatory adjustments

Intangible assets and other deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to CET1

CET1 capital

Total risk weighted assets

Capital ratios
CET1 capital
Tier 1 capital
Total capital

Institution specific buffer requirement
of which: capital conservation buffer
of which: countercyclical buffer

Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers

As at 31 December

2021
us$

26,500,000

(919,843)
110,108
185,357

25,875,621

{4,225,085)

21,650,536

21,650,536

130,319,507

16.60%
16.60%
16.60%

3.53%
2.50%
0.03%

14.53%
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7.2

Capital risk management - continued
Capital requirements

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the husiness. The impact of the level of capital on
sharehclders' return is also recognised and the Bank recognises the need to maintain a balance
between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven hy
optimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to each
operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capital, but in some cases the regulatory
requirements do not reflect differing risk profiles, subject to the overall level of capital to support a
particular operation or activity not falling below the minimum required for regulatory purposes, The
process of allocating capital to specific operations and activities is undertaken independently of those
responsible for the operation.

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining
how capital is allocated within the Bank to particular operations or activities, it is not the sole basis
used for decision making. Account is also taken of synergies with other operations and activities, the
availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with the Bank's long-term
strategic objectives. The Bank's policies in respect of capital management and allocation are
reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

As outlined previously, minimum capital requirements are calculated for credit, market and
operational risks. The Bank utilises the Standardised Approach for credit risk, the Basic Indicator
Approach for operational risk and the Basic Method for foreign exchange risk in order to calculate
the Pillar 1 minimum capital requirements. As disclosed previously, for credit risk, under the
standardised approach risk weights are determined according to credit ratings provided by
internationally recognised credit agencies such as Fitch or their equivalents and by using the
applicable regulatory risk weights for unrated exposures. Capital charge for foreign exchange risk
using the Basic Method is calculated at 8% of the higher of the sum of all the net short positions and
the sum of all the net long positions in each foreign currency. The Basic Indicator Approach requires
that the Bank allocates capital for operational risk by taking 15% of the average gross income.

The total capital ratio is calculated using the definition of regulatory capital and risk-weighted assets.
As required by the CRR, the minimum level of the Capital Requirements Ratio stands at 8%. The
Capital Requirements Ratio expresses own funds as a proportion of risk weighted assets and off-
balance sheet items, together with notional risk weighted assets in respect of operational risk and
market risk. Total risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the capital requirements for
market risk and operational risk by 12.5 (i.e. the reciprocal of the minimum capital ratio of 8%) and
adding the resulting figures to the sum of risk-weighted assets for credit risk.

The Bank will be fully implementing the CRD IV capital requirements with effect from January 2019.
in this respect, Banking Rule BR/15: ‘Capital Buffers of Credit Instifutions authorised under the
Banking Act, 1984, will require additional buffers, namely the ‘capital conservation buffer’, the
‘countercyclical buffer’, ‘other systemically important institutions (O-SII) buffer’ and the ‘systemic risk
buffer’. Automatic restrictions on capital distributions apply if the local group's CET1 capital falls
below the level of its CRD IV combined buffer.

The Bank will be required to maintain a capital conservation buffer of 2.5%, made up of CET1 capital,
on the risk weighted exposures of the Bank as from 1 January 2020. In May 2021, the MFSA
established the Bank’s Total SREP Capital Ratio (*TSCR") of 14.5%, and since then the Bank’'s CAR
has remained at a healthy level above that floor, as indicated by the CAR as at 31 December 2021
which stood at 16.60%.
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Capital risk management - continued
7.2 Capital requirements - continued

CRD IV contemplates a countercyclical buffer in line with Basel I1, in the form of an institution-specific
countercyclical buffer and the application of increased requirements to address macro-prudential or
systemic risk. This is expected to be set in the range of 3-2.5% of relevant credit exposure RWAs,
whereby the rate shall consist of the weighted average of the ‘countercyclical buffer’ rates that apply
in the jurisdiction where the relevant exposures are located.

The O-SlI buffer is also institution specific and may be set at a maximum of 2% of an systemically
important institution’s total risk exposure amount. Given the Bank's position as a non-core domestic
bank, in terms of its systematic relevance to the financial system in Malta, it is unlikely that the Bank
will be required to maintain an O-SlI buffer.

In addition to the measures above, CRD |V sets out a 'systemic risk buffer’ for the financial sector as
a whole, or one or more sub-sectors, to be deployed as necessary by each EU member state with a
view to mitigating structural macroprudential risk. The ‘systemic risk buffer’ may range between 0%
and 5%. There are currently no indications that the Bank will need to maintain a systemic risk buffer.

The tables below provide the geographical disiribution of the Bank’s credit exposure relevant to the
calculation of the institution-specific countercyclical buffer rate and the amount of institution-specific
countercyclical capital buffer.

General credit

exposures Own funds requirement
Own funds Countercylical
Exposure of which: general requirement  capital buffer
Country value for SA  credit exposures Total weights rate
uss$ us$ uss$ % %
Switzerland 30,127,275 20,826,220 20,826,220 0.18 0
Malta 68,571,071 15,111,626 15,111,526 0.13 0
United Arab
Emirates 19,373,192 16,300,285 16,300,285 0.14 0
United
Kingdom 10,194,437 9,027,475 9,027,475 0.08 ¥
Germany 0 0 0 0.00 0
Singapore 4,674,144 4,532,651 4,532,651 0.04 0
Luxembaourg 356,088 356,088 356,088 0.00 0.25
Brazil 6,308,582 6,872,610 6,872,610 0.08 0
:Brmsh Virgin 0 0 0 0.00 0
slands
Nigeria 7,727,858 7,647,738 7,647,738 0.06 0
Turkey 1,191,194 595,580 595,580 0.01 0
Monaco 0 0 0 0.00 0
France 221,250 110,542 110,542 0.00 0
United States 14,336,863 3,779,842 3,779,842 0.03 0
Mauritania 2,891,741 1,443,068 1,443,068 0.01 0
Russia 1,744,962 2,097,532 2,097,532 0.02 0
Hong Kong 2,150,241 2,143,181 2,143,181 0.02 1
Norway 423,736 423,736 423,736 0.00 1
Sweden 0 0 0 0.00 0
Other 32,100,134 27,382,572 27,382,572 0.23 0
Total 202,292,766 118,650,647 118,650,647
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Capital risk management - continued

7.2 Capital requirements - continued

Total risk amount
Institution-specific countercyclical buffer rate

Institution-specific countercyclical buffer requirement

The Bank’s capital requirements and Total capital ratio computation are as follows:

At 31 December 2021

Central governments or central banks
Multilateral development banks

Institutions

Corporates

Exposures in default

Covered bonds

Exposures in the form of units or shares in ClUs
Cther items

Credit risk

Foreign exchange risk
Operational risk

Total capital required

Own funds
Common Equity Tier 1 capital

Total own funds

Total capital ratio

2021
US$118,650,647
0.03%
US$35,595
Risk

Exposure weighted Capital
value assets required

Uss uss Us$
50,043,018 119,967 9,597
0 0 0
49,494,561 23,909,941 1,912,795
85,250,871 81,170,615 6,493,649
3,543,384 4,080,229 326,418
355,086 35,506 2,841
8,726,924 4,145,289 331,623
5,192,630 5,189,097 415,128
202,606,474 118,650,645 9,492,052
1,578,729 126,298
9,777,384 782,191
130,006,758 10,400,541

21,650,536,

21,650,536

16.6%
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7.

7.3

Capital risk management - continued
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

The Bank considers the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) embedded in Pillar
Il as a tool that ensures a proper measurement of material risks and capital and allows better capital
management and an improvement in risk management. Therefore, it facilitates a better alignment
between material risks and regulatory capital in order to have betier capital deployment and
improvements in the risk management and mitigation techniques adopted by the Bank. The ICAAP
as required by the MFSA Banking Rule 12 is performed on an annual basis.

Therefore, [CAAP is a process that the Bank utilises to ensure that;

- there is adequate identification, measurement, aggregation and monitoring of the Bank’s risks;

- adequate internal capital is held by the institution in relation to its risk profile; and

- the Bank uses sound risk management systems and there is the intention to develop them
further.

The Board and the Bank’s Executive Team take overall responsibility for the conceptual design and
technical details of the ICAAP document. Apart from the responsibility for the conceptual design, the
Board discusses, approves, endorses and delivers the yearly ICAAP submission. The Bank’s
independent risk oversight function is involved in the ICAAP with a view to ensuring that the process
reflects and takes cognisance of the Bank’s risk management activities and processes.

The ICAAP is a revolving management tool which starts with defining risk strategy, identifying,
quantifying and aggregating risks, determining risk-bearing ability, allocating capital, establishing
limits and leads to ongoing risk monitoring. The individual elements of the tool are performed with
varying regularity. All the activities described in the circuit are examined at lsast once a year to
ensure that they are up to date, adequate and also adjusted to current underlying conditions when
necessary.

The process invoives a quantitative assessment of individual types of risk and an assessment of the
existing methods and systems for monitoring and managing risk (qualitative assessment). The risk
assessment concept is used as a scoring precedure, thus providing a comprehensive overview of
the risk profile of the Bank.

The basis for the quantitative implementation of the ICAAP is the risk bearing capacity calculation
which demonstrates that adequate capital is in place at all times to provide sufficient cover for risks
that have been entered into and which also ensures such cover is available for the future. The Bank's
ICAAP is based upon a “Pillar 1 Plus” approach whereby the Pillar 1 capital requirement for credit
and operational requirements is supplemented by the capital allocation for other material risks not
fully addressed within Pillar 1. The risks considered for ICAAP include concentration, liquidity,
reputational and strategic risks, interest rate risk in the banking book, and risks arising from the
macroeconomic environment.

The Bank's ICAAP contains three year projections as well as the capital plan, and the Board monitors
that there are adequate capital resources to support the corporate goals contained within the plan
and the associated risks.

The Bank covers the Pillar 2 capital requirements through stress testing processes to forecast the
Bank’s projected capital requirements and resources in a range of stress scenarios. This enables
the Bank to guarantee that it can meet its minimum regulatory capital requirements in a stressed
environment.
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Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee is mandated by the Board of Directors to act directly and resolve on
its behalf on matters relating to the fixed and variable remuneration packages and employee
incentive schemes of the executive members of the Board, executive management and all other
employees of the Bank,

None of the directors, in their capacity as directors of the Bank, are entitled to profit sharing, share
options, pension benefits or any other remuneration from the Bank. The Bank has two directors that
are employees of the Bank. These fwo directors are part of the Bank’s senior management and
receive fixed remuneration in line with their position within the Bank which includes a fixed annual
pension contribution and an annual bonus payable based on an assessment of one's overall
performance during the previous financial year.

The Board of Directors considers that the packages offered to senior management ensure that the
Bank attracts and retains management staff that is capable of fulfilling its duties and obligations.
Furthermore, it is the Bank’s policy to engage its senior management staff on the basis of indefinite
contracts of employment after a period of probation, rather than on fixed term contracts. Accordingly,
the applicable notice periods, after probation, are those provided for in the relevant legislation.

Share options and profit sharing do not feature in the Bank’s processes and the individual contracts
of employment of employees within the Bank do not contain provisions for termination payments
and/or other payments linked to early termination other than as determined by Law. Currently no
pension benefits are payable by the Bank.

As required in terms of article 451 of the CRR, individuals have been identified as Material Risk
Takers (MRTs’) based on qualitative and quantitative criteria set out in the Regulatory Technical
Standard EU 604/2014 that came into force in June 2014. In addition to the Non-Executive Directors,
the Bank's MRTs consist of six senior management staff members including two Executive Directors.

Senior management staff members, consisting of five officials and including executive directors, are
eligible for annual salary increases but such increases are not directly related to the financial
performance of the Bank. An annual bonus is payable based on an assessment of one's overall
performance during the previous financial year. Bonus payments do not exceed 100% of the fixed
component of the total remuneration for each individual.

Total emoluments received by senior management, including Executive Directors, during the period
under review are as detailed below:

Fixed Remuneration Variable Remuneration

UsS$1,017,214 178,460

Total Non-Executive Directors' fees attributable for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to US$101,277 (2020: US$110,1086).
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Leverage

The leverage ratio is a regulatory and supervisory tool intended to provide a transparent and non-
risk based measurement of an institution to supplement the risk-based capital requirements. This
tool has been introduced to deter any possible build-up of excessive leverage, a main factor during
the banking crisis in 2008. The leverage ratio measures the relationship between the Bank’s capital
resources and its total assets.

The leverage ratio is calculated on a three-month average of capital as a proportion of total
exposures. Capital is defined as Tier 1 capital in line with Arlicle 25 of the CRR, whilst total exposure
relates to the total on and off balance sheet exposures less the deductions applied to Tier 1 capital.
The Bank does not apply transitional provisions when determining its Tier 1 capital in respect of the
leverage ratio calculation, as described in Article 489(1) and 499(2} of the CRR.

During 20186, the European Commission published a Proposal to amend Regulation 575/2013 (CRR),
which included the introduction of a 3% leverage ratio as a binding Pillar | requirement. Although this
Proposal is still in draft and further discussions are expected, the Bank complies with the 3% leverage
ratio based on fully-transitioned Basel lll standards.

The following is the Bank’s estimated leverage ratio, determined in accordance with the requirements
stipulated by implementing regulation EU 2016/200.

2021
Us$
Tier 1 capital 21,650,536
Total exposure measure for the purposes of the leverage ratio 212,433,328
Leverage ratio 10.2%

The total exposure measure for the purposes of the leverage ratic has been determined as follows;

2021
uss
On-balance sheet exposures {excluding derivatives)
On-balance sheet items (excluding derivatives) 204,845,923
Asset amounts deducted in determining Tier 1 capital (4,225,085)
On-balance sheet exposures {excluding derivatives and SFTs) 200,620,838
Off-balance sheet exposures
Off-balance sheet exposures at gross notional amount 11,812,490
Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent amounts (8,619,375)
Off-balance sheet exposures 3,193,115
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9.

10.

Leverage - continued

The following table provides a reconciliation of accounting assets and leverage ratio exposures.

2021

Us$

Total assets as per published financial statements 192,692,235

Adjustment for off-balance sheet items 3,193,115
Other adjustments

Deduction for intangible assets (1,978,718)

Adjustment for Depositor Compensation Scheme (617,95)

Leverage ratio exposure 193,288,727

The table below shows the different on balance sheet exposures in relation to the calculation of the
leverage ratio.

2021
uss
Total on-balance sheet exposures {excluding derivatives and intangible

assets), of which: 192,692,235
Coverad bonds 355,086
Exposures treated as sovereigns 50,043,018
Exposures to Multilateral developments banks -
Institutions 49,494 561
Corporate 85,250,871
Exposures in default 3,643,384
Other exposures 5,192,630

Asset encumbrance

The disclosure on asset encumbrance is a requirement introduced in Banking Rule 07 transposing
the provisions of the EBA Guidelines on Disclosure of Encumbered and Unencumbered Assets
(EBA/GL/2014/03).

The objective of this disclosure is to facilitate an understanding of available and unrestricted assets
that could be used fo support potential future funding and collateral needs. An asset is defined as
encumbered if it has been pledged as collateral against an existing facility, and as a result is no
longer available to the Bank to secure funding, satisfy collateral needs or be sold to reduce the
funding requirement.

The disclosure is not designed to identify assets which would be available to meet the claims of
creditors or to predict assets that would be available to creditors in the event of a resolution or
bankruptcy.
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10.

Asset encumbrance - continued

In accordance with the EBA 'Guidelines on disclosure of encumbered and unencumbered assets’,
the amounts disclosed in the table below represent median values, being the rolling quarterly
amounts over the previous 12 months.

Encumbered and unencumbered assefs

Carrying amount Fair value of Carrying amount Fair value of
of encumbered encumbered  of unencumbered  unencumbered
assets assets assets assefs
2021 2021 2021 2021
uss uUss$ uss$ uss
Assets of the reporting institution 20,078,454 - 172,460,3723
Loans on demand 20,078,454 - 15,867,017
Investments In money market - - 8,726,925
funds
Debt securities - - 62,240,952
Loans and advances other than - - 76,697,724
loans on demand
Other assets - - 8,927,754

The encumbered assets consist of:
+ pledged cash balances and securities in support of the Bank’s OTC derivative transactions
with counterparties; and
¢ units held by the Bank in a money market fund pledged as collateral in favour of another
credit institution for the purpose of establishing a credit line.

The unencumbered assets disclosed in the preceding table under ‘Other assets’ include cash and
short term funds, loans and advances to customers, property, plant and equipment, tax assets and
other assets.

The Bank continues to recognise these encumbered assets since all the risks and rewards of the
assets will be substantially retained in a manner that does not resulf in the encumbered assets being
derecagnised for accounting purposes.

The Bank does not encumber any of the collateral received.

Matching liabilities,

contingent liabilities Assets and collateral

or securities lent received

2021 2021

uss Uss$

Carrying amount of selected financial liabilities - 6,401,346
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1.

12,

Other directorships

According to the 'Guide to banking supervision’ issued by the European Central Bank in November
2014, a credit institution will be considered significant if any one of the following conditions is met:

- thetotal value of its assets exceeds €30 billion or — unless the total value of its assets is
below €5 billion — exceeds 20% of national GDP;

- itis one of the three most significant credit institutions established in a Member State;
- itis a recipient of direct assistance from the European Stability Mechanism; or

- the total value of its assets exceeds €5 billion and the ratio of its cross-border
assets/liabilities in more than one other participating Member State to its total
assets/liabilities is above 20%.

IIG Bank (Malta) Lid does not meet any of the above criteria, and therefore is currently not considered
significant by banking supervisors. Accordingly, the Bank is exempt from the reguirements of article
91 of CRD V.

The number of other directorships held by the members of the Bank's Board of Directors are listed
in the table below:

Number of other

Director Position directorships held
Raymond Busuttil Executive Director 5
James Douglas Nelson Non-Executive Director

Joseph Grioli Non-Executive Director 24
Karl Vella Executive Director -

For the purpose of the above disclosure, the number of other directorships held within the same
group are counted as a single directorship.

Recruitment and diversity policy

The Bank is aware that a vigorous and professional approach to recruitment and selection of
prospective members of the Board of Directors and management or other employees within the Bank
helps it to attract and appoint those individuals having the necessary skills and attributes compatible
with achieving the Bank's overall objectives. Thus, the Bank ensures that appointments at all levels
made within the Bank are based on each individual's knowledge, skills, expertise and merit, as
required by Maltese legislation and in line with policy.

The Bank undertakes a rigorous selection process for all prospective members of the Board and
management together with other employees, hearing in mind the key activities, tasks and skills
required for the vacant position. As part of the selection process, multiple interviews are conducted,
during which the individual’s knowledge, experience, skills and competency are evaluated against
those of other individuals.
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12,

Recruitment and diversity policy - continued

Bearing its objectives in mind, the Bank endeavours to appoint directors with diverse skills and
expertise that allow the Board to create value for shareholders by ensuring that the specific risks
pursued by the Bank in trade finance as well as risks that are intrinsic to banking business in general
are appropriately managed and mitigated within the Board’s approach. The Bank will continue to
promote this diversity by recruiting the ideal individual for the vacant position, regardless of the
individual’s gender, race, family, disability, sexual orientation, identity or preference.
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Five Year Summary

Statement of financial position

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Malta 13,539,932

Investment securities

Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to banks
Leans and advances to customers
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Right-of-use asset

Deferred tax assets

Accrued income and other assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Fair value reserve

Other reserve

{Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Amounts owed to customers
Amounts owed to banks
Derivative financial instruments
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

MEMORANDUM ITEMS
Commitments

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Us$ us$ Uss$ Us$ Uss
12,018,099 14,321,696 8,935,815 940,849

70,880,826 54,327,792 30,881,337 39,519,639 52,543,038
813 088,202 524,750 . 538,587
37,863,330 50,860,329 42,618,607 28,232,864 52,555,930
60,996,460 63,946,717 50,018,094 094,908,645 81,228,230
72,945 112,533 166,914 234,730 159,113
1,978,718 2,157,479 2.384,516 2,403,120 931,783
627,356 1,012,041 1,265,943 - -
1,628,464 1,760,867 1,567,777 2,238,492 122,238
5103,391 5,097,767 5,226,882 1,781,240 2,518,376
192,692,235 192,281,826 148,976,516 178,254,545 191,538,153
26,500,000 26,500,000 26,500,000 26,500,000 26,500,000
110,108 285,885  (96,317) (166,828) 256,013
300,149 300,149 300,149 300,149 50,924
(1,219,992)  (1,625,307) (906,788) (2,071,143) 1,729,914
25,690,265  25460,727 25,797,044 24,562,178 28,536,851
148,387,154 153,839,193 121,075,192 145,728,868 159,873,126
17,000,000 11,000,000 - 6,000,079 670,614
95,599 140,339 33,798 45,347 -

- - - 877424 877,424
1,083,840 1,083,840 1,315,195 - .
757,727 757,727 755287 1,040,649 1,580,138
167,001,970 166,821,099 123,179,472 153,692,367 163,001,302
192,692,235 192,281,826 148,976,516 178,254,545 191,538,153
13,512,490 13,638,823 8,669,653 3,132,077 2,619,531
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Five Year Summary

Statement of comprehensive income

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading (losses)/gains

Net gains/{losses} on disposal of financial assets
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive

incomefavailable-for-sale financial assets

Operating income

Net reversal of loan impairment charges

Change in expected credit losses and other credit
Impairment charges

Administrative expenses

(Loss)/profit before tax
Tax income/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the period

Other comprehensive income:

2021
us$

2020
uss

2019
Us$

2018
uss

2017
uss

6,057,787 5,404,272 7682814 8625374 8,354,770
(1,930,185) (1,786,198) (1,994,608) (2,485,950) (2,803,508)

4,127,602 3,618,073 5688206 6,139,424 5,551,262

1,040,499

ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Fair valuation of available-for-sale financial

assets:

Net changes in fair value arising during the
period, before tax

Reclassification adjustments — net amounts
reclassified to profit or l[oss upon dispesal,
before tax

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the
period, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)fincome for the
period

1,963,166 1,105,551 1,514,886 1,630,716
(743,943) (726,311) (307,883) (381,704) (556,090)
1,219,223 379,240 1,207,003 1,249,012 484,409
171,788  (442,184) 106,967 (2,557,263) (695,567)
7,971 101,398 156,713  (29,527) 1,019,252
5,526,584 3,656,527 7,158,889 4,801,646 6,359,356
. - - - 83552
(293,652) (597,162) (660,578) (5,951,577) -
(4,594,039) (4,176,775) (4,701,209) (3,916,726) (3,782,859)
638,893 (1,117,410) 1,797,102 (5,066,657) 2,660,049
(233,578) 398,891  (832,747) 1,757,759  (949,529)
405,315  (718,519) 1,164,355 (3,308,898) 1,710,520
(271,780) 689,400 265192  (490,555) 832,988
(7.971)  (101,397) (156,713} 29,527 (1,019,252)
103,974 (205,801)  (37,968) 161,360 65,192
(175,777) 382,202 70,511 (299,668) (121,072)
229,538 (336,317) 1,234,866 (3,608,566) 1,589,448
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Five Year Summary
Statement of cash flows

Operating activities

Interest and commission income received
Interest and commission expense paid

Net income from foreign exchange transactions
Tax paid

Cash payments to employees and suppliers

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities
before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Net (increase)/decrease in balances with Central Bank
of Malta

Net (Increase)/decrease in financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to banks
Net decrease/(increase) in amounts attributable to DCS
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to
customers

Net increase/(decrease} in amounts owed to customers

Net increase/(decrease) in amounts owed to banks
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

[nvesting activities

Purchase of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income / available-for-
sale financial assets

Purchase of financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets measured at amortised cost

Proceeds from disposal and redemptions of financial
assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale financial asset

Proceeds from disposal and redemptions of financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash (used in)y/generated from investing activities

Financing activities

lssue of ordinary share capital

Dividends paid to equity holders

Principal element of lease payment

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Uss$ uss US$ uss uss
6,190,130 6,617,172 9,194,434 10,691,973 9,484,815
(2,595,820) (2,490,351) (2,350,719) (2,913,045) (3,270,259)
1,129,065 2,822,532 1,267,445 316,844 (5940,494)
. - (861,074) - {1,857,835)
(3,803,043) (3,450,886) (4,333,774) (3,917,900) (3,562,387)
920,332 3,489,467 2916312 4,177,872 (5,166,160)
313,223  (246,800) 209,896 16,515  (234,825)
1,335,621 - . - .
4,105,024 (9,317,573) 2,057,010 (1,312,858) 6,424,378
(25,724) 73,051 152,008 40,409 (42,237)
(634,051) (9,945,088) 34,633,860 (20,183,514) 7,886,849
4,593,204 23,214,013 (24,653 676) (14,149,356) 39,206,068
6,000,000 11,000,000 (6,000,079) 5329465 (2,679,396)
16,607,629 18,267,070 9,315,421 (26,081,467) 45,394,677

(4,720,270) (22,834,682) (4,665219) (5,407,684)

{18,601,087) (8,479,561) (11,429,782) (32,714,457)

(32,076,439)
N/A

. N/A N/A N/A (11,720,808)
(22,077,537)
6,743,950 3,014,465 9,390,803 4,061,087 33,320,209
14,079,564 7,030,652 15,912,382 44,299,125 N/A
(16,128) (9.516)  (17.407) (166,870)  (61,283)
(134,393)  (66,578) (272.685) (1,614,101)  (918,838)
(24,725,901) (21,345,220) 8,918,092 8,457,100 (11,456,869)
- - - - 4,000,000
- - - - {2,800,000)
(408,634)  (328,456)  (281,176) - -
(408,634)  (328,456)  (281,178) - 1,200,000
(8,526,906) (3,406,806) 17,952,337 (17,624,367) 35,137,808
49,479,789 52,886,395 34,934,058 52,558,425 17,420,617
40,952,883 49479789 52,886,395 34,034,058 52,558,425
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